
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MAY 15, 2023  

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:30 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. United Way NPO Funding Process (Sherry Archibald, Executive Director)
b. NPO Funding Amount Discussion (Mayor)

4. NEW BUSINESS
c. Wayne County NC Proposal for Detoxification/Inpatient Center (ICGH-Goldsboro)
d. City Manager’s Recommended Budget (City Manager)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Pastor Pete Norris, Harvest Fellowship Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of May 1, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Employee Performance Awards 
C. Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni & Friends, Inc Proclamation 
D. GWTA Appreciation Month Proclamation 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
E. FY2023-2024 Annual Action Plan and Recommended Budget (Community Relations)
F. Amending Chapter 98: Streets and Sidewalks, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances (City Clerk)
G. Amending Chapter 117: Pushcart and Mobile Food Unit Vendors, of The City of Goldsboro’s Code of

Ordinances (City Clerk) 
H. Departmental Monthly Reports

VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION

IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

X. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS 
I. Tourette Syndrome Awareness Month Proclamation 
J. Peace Officers Memorial Day (Police Officers Week) Proclamation 
K. Armed Forces Day Proclamation 
L. Building Safety Month Proclamation  

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XII. CLOSED SESSION

XIII. ADJOURN

Removed - 



w.s. item a



























GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 2023

Recovery ….
Not Treatment

w.s. item c



Mission Statement & Goal

To promote self-
sufficiency and pro-social 
life choices through 
effective person-centered 
education, training, and 
treatment programs.

To empower persons 
suffering from behavioral 
health disorders to 
become as independent 
and self-reliant as possible 
by teaching them the skills 
they need to succeed in 
life.



STRUGGLING?
• It is our goal for persons struggling with behavioral health 
problems and their families to understand that substance use 
disorders, formerly known as addiction, as well as other 
behavioral health disorders, such as depression, anxiety, or 
PTSD, are treatable medical conditions, and that there is a path 
back to meaningful lives with the tools we provide in our 
prevention and treatment programs. This is most effective 
provided via evidence-based medical, pharmacy, toxicology, 
and behavioral health and social interventions, which we offer 
to both insured and uninsured individuals of the communities 
we serve.



Services Provided for Adults
● Comprehensive Clinical Assessment
● Individual and Family Counseling
● Outpatient Therapy
● EMDR 
● Dual Diagnosis Groups
● Gender Specific Groups
● Intensive Outpatient Therapy (SAIOP)
● Substance Abuse Comprehensive Outpatient 

Therapy  (SACOT)/Partial Hospitalization
● Free ICGH Transportation for Services
● Day One Recovery Transitional Housing: 

Federal, State, and County Funding 44 beds
● Day One Recovery Permanent Housing: 

Hickory (HUD-funded) 12 beds

● “Suboxone” Clinic (Medication Assisted 
Treatment and Medication Management) 
Same Day Service 

● Referrals to Inpatient Treatment Facilities
● Linking to Employment/Training & 

Educational Resources
● WRAP training
● Anxiety, Depression, Anger Management, 

Trauma Focused, and other MH Counseling
● DES Drug Education School 90-96
● Free Peer Support Services
● Physical Medicine



Services Provided for Adolescents

● Comprehensive Clinical Assessment
● Prevention Screening
● Transportation
● In School and Community Prevention Services
● Individual and Family Counseling
● Substance Use Outpatient Therapy
● Mental Health Outpatient Therapy
● Gender Specific Groups
● ADHD and Behavioral Health Issues
● Underage Drinking Counseling
● Referrals to Inpatient Treatment Facilities





Recovery Oriented Model is used with a core focus on 
modified 12-step facilitation for all substance use disorders, 
and incorporates other evidence-based methods (TF-CBT, 
MET, etc.) and specific interventions to improve the delivery 
of care – including addressing Dual Diagnosed persons, who 
also suffer from trauma or other behavioral health problems, 
physical medicine, SDOH, etc. 

Those who present mental health services only are given the 
most appropriate model of care for their needs from a wide 
array of certified providers: EMDR, TF-CBT, etc. 



What sets Integrated Care apart?
•Limited group size for group counseling allows for a more 
meaningful experience for the patient/client. Individual 
counseling at all levels of care. 
•Flexible counseling scheduling, including evening and weekend 
appointment options.
•Close interaction between counselors, medical staff, certified lab 
tech, toxicologist, pharmacist, and the mutual-help communities 
to ensure a holistic approach to the patient’s recovery. 
•County, State, and Federal Funded transportation, housing, and 
medications available in certain programs for qualified applicants.



What sets Integrated Care apart?
- Our counselors have personal experience or close familial 

experience with the disease of addiction, and the 12-step 
process. Mandatory participation in the Community Recovery 
Communities.

- Acceptance of Medicare, Medicaid, private insurances, and 
availability of state/federal funding for those without coverage. 
IOP services available for those with private insurance.

- Care for all behavioral disorders with appropriate medication 
management, including MAT, as well as non-addictive treatment 
for depression, anxiety, PTSD, ADHD, etc. Not just treatment for 
addictive processes.



Clinicians

• LICENSED CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKERS 
(MH/SA)

• LICENSED CLINICAL ADDICTION SPECIALISTS 
(SA/DUAL Dx)

• CERTIFIED ALCOHOL AND DRUG 
COUNSELORS (SA/DUAL Dx)

• LICENSED MENTAL HEALTH COUNSELORS 
(MH/SA)

• PEER SUPPORT SPECIALISTS (MH/SA)



Medical

• Physicians
• Family Nurse Practitioners
• Physician Assistants
• Medical Assistants

Providing care Every Day



Medication-Assisted      
Treatments and 

Medical Supervision 
for all Behavioral 
Health Services

• Provided by NCMB licensed providers, including 
physicians, nurse practitioners, and PAs.

• Walk-in and scheduled Services Monday thru 
Friday

• On-Call Coverage 24 hours a day
• Addressing Substance Use Disorders as well as 

other behavioral health issues, including 
Anxiety and Depression

• Detecting medical disorders and referring as 
needed for treatment 



Pharmacy
Services

• Licensed Pharmacists 
• Dispensing Medical Providers
• On-Site Low-Cost Pharmacy
• Federal Funded Generic Suboxone for 

qualified uninsured patients
• Easy, Confidential Pick-up of 

Medications at time of Office Visit
• Delivery of Medication to Partner 

Clinics



Grant-
funded and 
State-
funded 
programs*

• Free Peer Support
• Free Provider Training
• Free care for Opioid Use Disorder, 

including Suboxone®
• Free Recovery Housing
• Free Transportation
• Free Referral Services
• Free Community Interventions
• Free OUD Addiction Treatment  

*program availability per county



Current 
HRSA 
and SAMHSA 
Grants 
Activities

• FREE TREATMENT FOR THOSE REQUIRING MAT WITH COUNSELING AND PEER SPPORT

• OUTREACH SUPPLIES TO UNSHELTERED WITH SAME-DAY  PLACEMENT IN HOUSING

• FREE TRANSITIONAL HOUSING

• NEW ANTI-STIGMA TV CAMPAIGN WITH TRADITIONAL AND DIGITAL MEDIA AIRING IN LINCOLN COUNTY THROUGH THE END OF DECEMBER 2022

• ANTI-STIGMA BILLBOARDS REFERENCING REFERRALS TO FREE CARE

• FUNDING PREVENTION IN THE SCHOOLS

• DETERRA MEDICATION BAGS, LOCK BOXES, RESCUE NARCAN

• PEER SUPPORT IN LOCAL AGENCIES, SHELTERS, ETC. 

• AWARENESS EVENTS: International OD Awareness,  ETC.

• EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES: Educational Webinars, Bridge MAT presentation for EMS, OD Mapping, CIT, ETC. 

• NEW MEDICATION DISPOSAL DROP BOXES 

• AND MORE



Specialized 
Programs



Pregnancy Support Services
- We expedite induction of pregnant patients when they seek care.
- Psycho-education is offered in a compassionate and supportive 

manner to prepare the mother for the process of giving birth, and 
and the possible challenge of weaning in hospital due to 
medication-assisted-treatment during pregnancy.

- Due to the group-based nature of counseling at our clinic, 
pregnant women are able to easily forge healthy relationships 
with other women in the program.

- A nurse in recovery who delivered her child during the course of 
her care with ICGH helps other pregnant women in the program.



Psychological
-Evidence-Based Counseling

-Behavioral Interventions for 
Co-occurring Disorders

-Recovery-Oriented

Social
-Mutual Help Communities 

(Medication-Assisted 
Anonymous, etc.)

-Education
-Transitional Supportive 

Housing
-Employment

-Transportation

Medical 
-Medication-Assisted 

Treatment

-Treatment for Co-
occurring Disorders

-Laboratory Testing

-Pharmacological 
Services

Care
Management

Spirituality

The Integrated Care Approach for Treatment of Opioid Use Disorder

Principles
-Stigma-free
-Strength-based
-Person-centered
-Trauma-informed
-Community-based
-Peer-supported
-Outcome-based
-Culturally-
competent

Features
-Shared treatment goals
-Shared treatment plan

-Shared diagnosis
-Shared assessment

-Shared outcomes

Model

(Richardson, C., 2018)







21





23



24



Community-Specific Harm Reduction 
opening the door to Long-term Recovery
Medication Lock Boxes, Pill Take Backs, 
Deterra® Bags, Lock Up Your Meds, 
etc. 

Rescue Narcan, Safe to Call, etc. 



ICGH PSA TV ads 





Clinical 
Director/ 

CEO

Dr. Corey Richardson

• Doctor of Applied Health Science Research and Education 
• Master Degrees from College of Medicine and Business Administration
• JAAPA Published Research
• Peer-Reviewer for the International Medical Journal, MEDICINE
• Faculty Lecturer for NW AHEC at Wake Forest School of Medicine
• Former NCAPA consultant
• NCSAPPB Licensed LCAS and CCS
• NCCAP MAC-certified 
• Work includes US Congressman Patrick McHenry, Senator Thom Tillis, and 

Governor Roy Cooper 
on the Opioid Crisis

• First Primary Research Study ever of PAs with SUDS in association with NC 
Physician Health Program



Medical 
Director

Dr. Ramesh Krishnaraj
• University of North Carolina School of Medicine, Chapel Hill, North Carolina, M.D., May 
1997

•University of North Carolina School of Public Health, Chapel Hill, North Carolina, M.P.H., 
Health Policy and Administration, May 1998

•Former Broughton State Hospital President Medical and Psychology Staff

•Pavilion Treatment Center, Mill Springs NC, February 2018 till present, Private non-profit 
residential addiction treatment center, assist in providing support for professionals and men’s 
extended treatment groups, as well as alumni services , contributor to weekly Alumni support 
columns 

•Caldwell House, Lenoir NC , Board Member February 2019 till present, Private non-profit 
sober living house, helping individuals transition to productive sober living through the 
encouragement of 12-step recovery , safe living environment and employment services 

•Extensive Research Experience 

•American Board of Internal Medicine, Board Certified 

•American Association of Hospice and Palliative Care Medicine, Board Certified 



Wayne County Location

• Regional Detoxification Services

• Residential Services

• Outpatient ICGH Services

• Community Recovery HUB



•ICGH focuses on the person-centered concepts related to RECOVERY instead of 
rigid, service-focused programs that neglect participation in recovery 
communities.
•Our counseling, medical, nursing, and administrative staff have personal 
experiences or close contact with the disease of addiction and long-term 
recovery. Applying this experiential knowledge ties to successful recovery-
oriented treatment planning and delivery of services.
•We are equipped to serve uninsured, Medicare/Medicaid, and privately- insured 
individuals seeking treatment at several levels, including IOP and Partial 
Hospitalization.
•Our diversely-trained staff, on-site laboratory, and on-site pharmacy enable us 
to provide higher quality, lower cost care at all levels of treatment.

In Conclusion



a family of companies



Contact Information
Main Facility

and Corporate Offices
741 5th St. SW

Hickory, NC 28602-3237

Lincolnton Site
1228 North Flint Street

Lincolnton, NC 28092-5239

Gastonia Site
902 E. Garrison Blvd, 

Gastonia, NC 28054-4571

Shelby Site
809 N. Lafayette St., A

Shelby, NC 28150

Statesville Site
523 Brookdale Dr

Statesville, NC 28677-4107

Phone: 828-322-5915
Fax: 828-345-0387
24 hours coverage

Contact us!
Follow us!

www.facebook.com/ICGHtreatmentcenters

www.facebook.com/RECOVERYnorthcarolina

www.facebook.com/InOurHeartsStill/

www.facebook.com/DayOneRecoveryHomes/

www.facebook.com/AndersonPharmacyCramertonNC

www.instagram.com/icgh_treatment_centers

twitter.com/CareGreater 

www.integratedcarehickory.com 



a` r'
M

ij

U

b
o  O

b

a
o  

CIS

o  
U

cz

O

3

0

oON

Q
U

Cd

k
W

o ° 
b

OCZ

O

No  

b

a

c

Q

C'

s

L 

d

o

a

as

y

z

W ^

O

U

e

c .

7

0

O

O

En

U

CZ

O  
U  

m

m

m

m

m

a

OO

N

N

N

N

N

V7

O

ARE

E

Ia

N

u

u

Nw

E

u> 

u

m ° 

u

m

u

ct

mN

m
N

m
N

m
N

0

mN

mm
N

mmmmmm

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

c

O

d

OLd

d

d

m

mm

m

e

e

c

o

t

C

a

d

c

Uyy

Ncn

o

w

m

Oi
c 

u. 
OM

w

i

CJ
0

Ea

a

cF 

v 

CL

OLm

w

d

C

a

H
cz 

7

LUQ

cc. 

E

a

U

0c" 

0

W" 

2t

Q. 

m-

Ea 
a

oo

u 

b

0

cz

u

c

a

as

5

U

A

C "' 

e

A

m

e

g

U

CL

c

n

w

uCL

a

O

7

a

E

V

Q

a

z

m11

caa

E- 

E

3

auczEE
mp -

roEuEo

u

a

s

r
co

cz

am?

Q"

w

E=

o

acaro

r

6-

v

UUUUU

CL

tc

cumaE

n

0 

03a

r

1

a

Y¢ 

a

a

u

m

C

U

a" 

E

E: 

0

U

O. 

a. 

c

a

a

c

m

7
LL

F- 

0

W

c

p

a

Z

W

0u

7

it

m

A

Zu

A

u

r, 

p

a

0

0

O

3

0

n

M- 

r

d

7

c

0

C

C

w

5

d

L

2~ 

C

Ln

3` 

U

0

0

u

M

Na

m

W

CO

cc; 

d 

o3m

o

no

E

o

v

rz

a

o:? 

D

y °' 

m

a

c

C.

u.

a

bo  O

b

ao  

CIS

o  
Ucz

O

3

0

oON

QU

Cd

kW

o ° b

OCZ

O

N
o  

b

a

c

Q

C'

s

L 

d

o

a

as

y

z

W ^

O

U

e

c .

7

0

O

O

En

U

CZ

O  U  

mrl
O

m

m

m

m

m

a

n

N

N

N

N

N

O

ARE

E

Ia

u

u

Nw
E

u> 

u

m ° 

u

m

u

aci

mN

m
N

m
N

m
N

mN

mN

mm
N

mmmmmm

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

aa
d

d

d

OLd

d

d

m

mm
m

e

e

c

o

t

C

a

d

c

m

a

o

w

m

0

u. OM

w

u

CJ0

Ea

a

w

CL

OL
m

w

d

C

a

N

7

7

u, 

u

0

c

0

E

a

a

7

O

cc. 

E

a

U

0c" 

0

W" 

2t

Q. 

m-

Ea a

oo

u 

mvca
a

as

m

u

O

A

C "' 

e

A

m

e

g

U

CL

c

n

w

uCL

a

O

7

a

E

V

n

z

m11

caa

E- 

E

rom

auczEE

mp -

roEuEo

u

a

s

m

Nam

y°

rod
m

am?

Q"

w

E=

o

acaro

r

6-

v

ro

CL

tc

cumaE

n

u°

U

03a

r

1

a

Y¢ 

a

a

u

m

C

U

a" 

E

E: 

0

U

O. 

a. 

c

a

a

c

m

7
LL

a

La

a +.. 

0

W

c

p

a

Z

W

0u

7

ya

o
0" 

m

A

Zu

A

u

r, 

p

a

0

0

3

0

n

M- 

r

d

7

c

0

C

C

w

5

d

L

2~ 

C

Ln

3` 

u

W`0

d

iri

0

0

u

M

j

m

m

W

CO

cc; 

d 

o3m

o

no

E

0"

EoorE

u

m

o:? 

D

y °' 

m

a

c

C.

u.

a

CL

c

cm 

o_

c"^

maoam
o° 

mmmEO—
ZEE

uCL

u

c«

Q"

0" 

v

E_

a. 

0

C

G>,

oD
u'' 

CLmarou y
p3as
0

a

a

10
7

00a m

ao

s

c0_

mar

Z

ago¢=

oww

as

me
ro

a

N

c

6

c

a

m

o 

m

3° 

7

a"

ala W« 

N3

o0Naca` N

pan o« 

000"
CL

m

0

am= 

CLW

ca-'"

o

W" 

Eu

aaCL
E

cm

aam

a\"!

i

L

E

E

U

v" 

a

V

C

f

4

a

a

m

E

0N

a° a

C

a

m

m

0w
V

m

u„ 

3v+

CYi.
Ji

L7

m

LL

Y

ro

7

1

7mma3oa
c

u

a

l9

3Oconool'°
33103

7

13

u

c

f11

a+ 

7

n 

n

N

C" 

o
0

Dvia
v

d

crmcr

3a

uEro

muNa51»
az] 

N

a

N

a

L

pp

wa

V1

v

Ca

y

m

r

5
Y

c

a

a

m

m

E

O

cc

a

w

w

I- 

u

m

1

mc

0

n

O

zc

a0 0

mo
E

a

mOL
aZ

Ev

u

c` 

om

CL

7

wV

c

m

Ia

0
Y

m

m

c

u

E

my

u

ctr
c"

o

E

u

c7

E0

c

0

c° 

c060
p

0; 

o

E

ro0

0u

u

a

c

c

m

10c

0

E

moo^

u3a
am
c

ua

QE

w

40

c

2

CkE

aEm

a

ua

c0"

vn>
0

a

c

a

a

m

t9

uro

z

d

czoom1
w

m""

0Em

o

0° 

0

0

s

CLmM

a

a

Om«$ 

0

ro

m; 1

0

m1

m1

aEyo
m

Q

a•

c

r

0

ovam1
0

w

o

u" 

u

u

Oa0av;
uv,

au

mrlO

m

m

m

m

v

m

N

N

N

N

N

N

O

uo

I

Ia

C

a

c

aci

m

O

Hu

d

r

3

C

oif

a

0

c

0." 

O1

a

aE

Eo

U

mv, 

r

t

m

c

m

a

o

w

m

0

u. OM

u

0c

a

u

0a

Ea

a

CL

OLm

w

d

C

n

m

0

c

c

n

cc. 

E

a

U

0c" 
0m

Em

0

c

a

d1

O

c° 

y

m

u

n

Z

Ntu

y

9

0

Ca

0

m

a

s

C

v

a

0

c0

mu

Ea

o

f

E

E> 

v

u

a

s

0

0

c- 

m

A- 

0

oa

t

n

c

03a

E

0> 

a

E

c" 

m

o

a

E

v

u

Z

0

r

u

o

W

4

0

c

o

3

10

o

n

a

c.. 

A]

aE

m=

aC

C

0,

m

c ]

m

O

m .

G :° 

u

E

Y

q

u

o ` 

oilO

O

Y

0

v

E

a
a
o

a

a

m

u

O

3

m

0O
a

m

c •

Em

u

u« 

a

m

a

ac «. '

0

Nc
cmCL

c

m

c

a

OnzN

l9

uO

m

mc

u

aaCL

v

Ow

aG

u

vi

jLL

m

m
c

c

E

n

1

Oa

D

LL

0

a

a  

z

0

o
0

0

0o

a

t

tr

N

a

N

a

L

pp

m
a. 

V1

v

m

y

m

r

5Y

E

a

m

m

O

cc

a

w

w

I- 

u

mrlO

Item A



b  

on

o

Y

L

CZ

3

0

oA • 

v

ct

0

3

ao

cn

y

tD

N

O

N

O

cn - 

oon

o

3 > 

MO

oj

4: 

O•

y

V7 "

d

di

C.,) 

cc

cz

O

N

i

0

N

C,

3

cq

yC) 

Q

C3

i.

r

M

N

V

O

N

N

t

M

N

p

Cd

Uj  --'••+• 

0

b

Q) 

cz -

d

n

6n

o

o

o

0

CZ

ani

n

C

O.

rAo
N

c0

y

y . 

U4

Q

c 

0 ! 

3

a 

cd > 

O

M

vi

cz

cn

ci

cr.
4y- 

3r

Y

O

Na

OCZ %: >., 

N

b

i+•+ 

N

0 ¢

r

N

D

O

Q

Mg

r - 

N

U

N

O

CZxbj

ain.
o

czr. 

M0
Iz- 

O

i

V

E`

o- 

E

o

D
c? 

i

Mutv

ro

o

d

9

S

E' 

2m
w > 

n

Y

n

O

c

d

a

k

o3atO

cE
a

0

iw

E

io

7

D_ 

v1

O

O

C

a

in  

3

m

o

2

a

m- 

W. 

c

i

E

C

m

c

a.

ai

aqua
Jromvao

c

a

t

0

A 

avE:° 

n

C

a °` m

yav
i° 

EvED

NamE a 

O

N

Ecmc

m

N?„ 

a

12anc. .
E

p

m

0 - 

Q

u

rE'

c

5mao
YON
G.

0..°-.°.. .°+ 

n

y0
or

a

15

S

M4v

ar

i

a

a

m

ip

C

L

Gaii

r.

i

a?

n

z0

L,

caw
a$

m

w

37. 

E

u

Yn

O

i` 

o

xa

Ncc
c

C

mar

G

O

C

QaO
C.

nTa

o

aF?'

uuR

n

n

n .., 

y

u

E

Oa

G

C

C

P

S

RM

LN>? 

OVN
N

O

C] {

i

U

Ha

w

E

N

O

e

c

iR

O

O- 

aP

E

VOoc
uy

V

C

00

a,°`

j •

c

c

c

o

a

N

Un5

wya.
v

Y" 

c

a

ii

o

Q

i

d

r

c

O

m

L^ 

C

N

p

a
G

C
af

e

p

o

g

nS

c

u

Y

V

y

M

a

Y+ 

N

j

s

r

W

Z

F- :

3

S

ao

0811
fl, 

El

a

r

IM

CL

Y, 

e

s

e
m

e

r• 

u

E

p

0

e

u 

s 

e

y

0m; 

O

9

a-+ 

m

E

W

c

w

o

8

E° 

3,

c0E

3

A

sto
c

m

o

on

q

Ip

s

G

mr

1 

v

W

Ol

p

E

O1. 

E

b

i2

C

Y

Y ` 

O

3

Va
Z

6

C

A

c

to

ONU

011.
i1r

M0
Iz- 



N

p

u

A = 

a

t

N

E

N

C

cE
S

y

O

o

L
a

0 

M

EA

o

E

u

C

1p

c

u

C

Y

Lq:

E

72

C

C

o

0

Z

J

C _ 

LL

C

I  

r

s

3$ 

uugT

8

ca- 

Qro

av

o = 

o "_

s# 

LL

d

N

N
rr

o

o

Li  

N

p

u

A = 

a

J

c

N

O

U

v

CL

N

E

N

C

cE

S

y

O

o

La

0 

M

EA

o

E

u

C

1p

c

u

C

Y

Lq:
E

72

C

C

o

0

Z

pa

0

L

r, c

C

3

3uw 

i4

M

M

N

W

eN G

f6

C
C

0

Z

J

C _ 

LL

LAI

icoILM

LL

o

v

3

6

p

0

a

H

oc

O

Nv

y

a

Q

cc

a

m

o

pa

0

L

7

y

C

3

3uw 

i4

M

M

W

W

eN G

0

0

Z

J

C _ 

LL

LAI

icoILM

pa

M
0M

0

L

7

y

C

3uw 

3A
M

L

P~•
1

0

Cd

N

m

E

m

10

eN G

0

M0M

0

J

Ed

ii

0AN

QdweN G

0

Z

J

C _ 

LL

LAI

icoILM

LL

v

M0M



4  

l

J

A

NOW

dC

cp

T

r

O

jr

N

Q

Z

QO

Eg

10

C: 

Uq
N

N

CAN
bq

0

y

p

rn

O

to

N

r °' °' 

U

o

0

0cz
o

0

En

x

may++ 

U

y

O •: 

O , '

3

C;

3

to

CC

is

i• -

i

N '

b .

fl

V `

3 .

0

H

C 

to

o

a 

b

b

c - 

a3

o > 

U

P4

M

o

o

o

U 

o

a >, `

ou

tn

Cd° 

w

a

b

A

P. 

o

a

U

a " '

S., 

04

0

o

o

U • " 

y

f1r

O

U

w

U

ou

40. 

to

0

a

i

b -

n

b „

o , 

0

o

Ei

S 

rnO

U

0

0

cC

O

y

O

O

O

U '

d

o

U

r

oco

N

t/

1

w

W

00000S"

N

m

0O

N

o

a

N

N

a

u ° °> .'. 

cG

b

0

vi

o

o

Q. 

a 

c

0

b '

d

U

El

o -

o

v

3

0 ° 

a

CZ

w

04

Cd

Q)

40.

Q) 

O

y0  

O  

O

y

En

0

O

U

Wit", '. 

N  

U

co

4. 

b +  

d

rn

O

3

a , ... 

a 

0

0

opo

b

o . 

o

qb
o 

O

O

U ° 

U

m

d

b

y

o

Q

dA

i

0to

0 ~ 

pcz $
1

C13

rA
b

O

a

o

0

3

3

a

E

q --

c 

M

ca

O

yw4w 

w .

El

3

N

Q! 

Y ^

di

bU

C

A

U

O

En

x

y

U „

d

N

m

N

O  

U

N

O

N

N

O .

ri

F•

i .- 

M

w

X-
1

2$

4 • 

U

O

per„ 

y

o

0

o, 

O

y 

1

M 

O

O

M0
R* 

Z

zv
cp

r

O

N

N

Q

N

Q

Z

QO

Eg

e8

4 

C: 

m

sw

Q1

m

E" 

E 

OD

Es

i° 

o

EAg

c

C6

E

E

o 

E

M> 

Y

toD1xqpa

N

N

6

Uq
N

N

CAN
bq

0

y

p

rn

O

to

N

r °' °' 

U

o

0

0cz

o

0

En

x

may++ 

U

y

O •: 

O , '

3

C;

3

to

CC

is

i• -

i

N '

b .

fl

V `

3 .

0

H

C 

to

o

a 

b

b

c - 

a3

o > 

U

P4

M

o

o

o

U 

o

a >, `

ou

tn

Cd° 

w

a

b

A

P. 

o

a

U

a " '

S., 

04

0

o

o

U • " 

y

f1r

O

U

w

U

ou

40. 

to

0

a

i

b -

n

b „

o , 

0

o

Ei

S 

rnO

U

0

0

cC

O

y

O

O

O

U '

d

o

U

r

oco

N

t/

1

w

W

00000
S"

N

m

0O

N

o

a

N

N

a

u ° °> .'. 

cG

b

0

vi

o

o

Q. 

a 

c

0

b '

d

U

El

o -

o

v

3

0 ° 

a

CZ

w

04

Cd

Q)

40.

Q) 

O

y0  

O  

O

y

En

0

O

U

Wit", '. 

N  

U

co

4. 

b +  

d

rn

O

3

a , ... 

a 

0

0

opo

b

o . 

o

qb
o 

O

O

U ° 

U

m

d

b

y

o

Q

dA

i

0to

0 ~ 

pcz $

1

C13

rA b

O

a

o

0

3

3

a

E

q --

c 

M

ca

O

yw4w 

w .

El

3

N

Q! 

Y ^

di

bU

C

A

U

O

En

x

y

U „

d

N

m

N

O  

U

N

O

N

N

O .

ri

F•

i .- 

M

w

X-
1

2$

4 • 

U

O

per„ 

y

o

0

o, 

O

y 

1

M 

O

O

M0

R* 



O

U

O

Qi

r3

U

U

a

N

is

W  

tf) 

a) 

f

5

c", 

Qom, 

a).

d ¢ 

3

a) 

a

a

cn

O

a) 

Q

C13

y

r

00

Q

U

O

N

M

N " 

O

U

U °

Q

U

69

r.

iti

M

4. 

cd

O

U

S

o

N

2:

1

R

y

ti

c

yam" > 

rU/7

O '

C'

i _ 

cd

0

a; 

ctS

O 

r

z

X

S

N $ 

E

O

t

U

to

O

s" 

D

0 _ '

a7

cC3CYS

N

8

i

0

C 

rA'

C

O

U

cd

0

8

0

p

y
O

U

U

i€ 

o

ge = 
c

A

L

L"+ 

U

i•. " 

cz

M

cd

v

X

o

E `

y

vcz

L7

U

v

a) 

Q

i

a

f

w

3

i

u

s ' 

c

X

M

ca

cz

C

Q. 

O

cCS

y

U."" 

N

N

Y , " 

i11 ^

n

a) 

O

U

c 

YO . 

c8

U ^ 

U

O

O '

C

U

OU

US

b

y

S"" 

N

cz

t

is

X

M

cc

r. 

O

3

0O

z

U

o

U

a -

d

z

Z

O

o

n

A

a) 

Q

O

c

H

r

o = 

p

o

e

Q $ 

3

o

Q

y

b
c " !

Q— 

g ~ 

4

Z

y

a) 

I --

I

z

0

W

a $ 

N

Y

cq

w

M

W 

0

a 

c '

d

o

N °

3

a

y

oIn
W
f

Z

a —

g

y

tn > 

cca

v, 

w + 

e

e

ct

Ln

cz

cc

cn

pcn ccU

cap

U ° 

P« 

O

i

HU

MriO



C

Q

N  

N

J

O

6

a

n

SQ
IYi

cQ
oaa

L

3

p

Co

F

0

M

Cl

41

a

c

MN

C

1

EN
N

E

a

o  N

V

LL

cc

o

In

V

L  tM

C

cm2

CC' 

n

wC

MO
N

O
M

C: a
7

v
Cl. 

O

QvNrn} LLS
N

O. 

o

U

o

b

COO4.

1i
V] 

Q) 

U

4-

4

3

0

cd

U

U

N

cz

U
yy

a  
O

sct

o

o

G) 

s.. 

p

U

N

O  

Qc 

O

c 

Q, 

bUA" 

O7r

U

cz

U

o

3

on

cq3C7

CZO

G. 

O

UC3 :
2

d

F- —, 

bq

0

o

E , ° -

d

co

o

n

o

o

N

b1p

o

F~ 

o

a

oQA; 
3  

3

3'> 

o

O

cz

ca

14, 

N

0

0

0

O

O

O– 

W

o `

z

3000UU
F- (

1

p, 

ti

0 + 

cz04

c

o

3

cd

O

U

U

U

c~

v

a

Mri
4- 

0D

s

N

N

c

m

m

u

o

E

a

o

J

N

S

N

O

N

u

E

a

E

mA
c

c

M

NO

viovGIN

C

C

E

A

r

A

OJ

N

U'

R

E
E

C

N

n

Yf

N

E

0

IT

LL

c

d

Q

w

V

J

n

u

q

yCj

d

Om

N

m

cc

F2

ti41

N

U

d

U

O

N

C

c

O

n

E

n

n 

a> 

CL

U

C

d

iv

a

vl

W

3

E

J

n

u22

a2N

d

x

W

V

E

m

a

N

N

M
O
N

O
MC: 

a7v
Cl. 

OQvNrn} LLSN
O. 

o

U

o

b

COO4.

1i
V] 

Q) 

U

4-

4

3

0

cd

U

U

N

cz

Uyy

a  O

sct

o

o

G) 

s.. 

p

U

N

O  

Qc 

O

c 

Q, 

bUA" 

O7r

U

cz

U

o

3

on

cq3C7

CZO

G. 

O

UC3 :

2

d

F- —, 

bq

0

o

E , ° -

d

co

o

n

o

o

N

b1p

o

F~ 

o

a

oQA; 
3  

3

3'> 

o

O

cz

ca

14, 

N

0

0

0

O

O

O– 

W

o `

z

3000UU
F- (

1

p, 

ti

0 + 

cz04

c

o

3

cd

O

U

U

U

c~

v

a

Mri
4- 

0D



O4•- 
rCd
O

CISY
0) "

3

r-+ 

bA

O

U

b4t" 
U

O «

3

4" ' " 

Y

O + 

a

n

a°
Ai

4-

4

aoi

i

p 

Y

o

W

to

W/iiO+y.. 
l •'

YNcCC

b .," 

Qp

M, jc_ , 

U

0

4" !

1+

Oo. 

O3

U •

Io

N

Wt
0t- ."

M

O ° 

pyp

pGU
c0O

4O

to

to

O14 +
O

N

O

CISto

o~

y ° " 

oo
o 

V5

O

cd

U

u

0

b

C00OS

yta

0

0 >, 

O

bA

r

Y

O •

b

O

CIS

N

b

P'

It

U

N4

o /

y

al

O"

r

m

0

d

to '

G

co

O0
i  

CIS

0 >' 

or

o

14

w

co

N 

O

t"" 

byA

4

cC

O 

i /

per

Y + 

f]. 

O 

d '

C

c .

yJ

C •.!"

r

co

Q• 

i-

1 : 

0 

i

OL

U

U '

y

v

V1

U ' 

IS

O 

U"•+

Qom"% 

v •" 

y

i" 

i•+ 

Im  

i" , ." 

Z' 

f-

r

i" 

U 

U ' 

U

N

3-" 

Y00

is

O

0

c 

r. 

bosa

N

CbA". 

y

x

N 

j

PS

p &

0m
P. '

G > 

3

0" 

p , 

G" 

s: 

y

N

QCIS

c 

y

ii --

ii

cC }-

y1

O +,-..

y+ , ,

s' 

cwd

U

p 

n3 .-" 

y '

C

S. 

L: 

s-• 

Vi

Y }]

y

O '

o

V

Q% 

p

p

U .

o

U

U

V

g

Y

0

1!/

iy

0) 

y

p

3° 

ti

Y

C 

O

U ' 

El  

O

O ^' '

moi

iii

N

Tf /

y

U

Cs  

V

N

V 

C 

i^ 

bb

0  

0  ' 

F" 

N

O

C

f  

O

N

1

W

r. •"•

Y

O

Y }

Nyy •

C 

F+

1 / 

O

i•

1

w •~" CIS

r.

111

cd

U

rl

CZ OA " /

Wy

O1 ,

yy$ 

lz

Q) 

1

i" •__

v^^ ^' • 

f/) 

U

0 /

1 ' 

irl-I

Ir1l , 

iq

O . 

r
l

Q 

i+

l (

O

V . • 

rl 

I

ri
i" 

h! ^ 

Imo" 

i-

1 "!' 

N-1

V

Q) 

O

F"'

1

ip"  '

cl,}.

yy+ ,}

Q.
yy

Ur. .
Vi -
1" ,

1-

x.1

C  }

ryyl > 

Y }"  

C 

w,•yJ  

C +

yy !/]  

U ° 

a,, 

A.
n^ 

wa>"
i

N

o

i" .

i}""

y '

d ! 

1 

Q .

u". 

O 

I

M

U

Y .

iU"1

ru. 

i" 

I 

O

W+ 

U

o

Y,
y

bM

v 

y  

i" 

U4) 
0

i" ~ 

C'

s') 

i" .'-

I .+" 

O .

may  

i

q

U

r. 

O

y

U , 

y 

I

C/

1 ..

fir

cd

4" 

O

u .

p". 

O

y

U

Q) 

coY +

O+ 

U

y

Q) 

O +- 

4

o

a 

b '

3

0

0

0

i

o

U

o

a ,

6. 

od

U`

i'

mRl arT . ¢

a

aco

O

U °  

o

wV' 

o " 

0

wa0

4

o

X23

U

r

4" 

Y ° 

C - 

VOU

0

U `

N

0

w .- - 

0

0

Oo

th

O

tw

b

U ° 

O

O

VfO
0 = ° 

O

1

O •

y °

cd

Uca

O

O

w

0

U

ic'

O

ti ¢ 

O *

Cn
O

0

O

N

QUN
En

C

O

O

O

cn

rD

0 ' 

0

A

Q" 

1

p !' 

a >, 

a 

Q• 

O ° 

o

c

NO°'Ii [

W7]`. 

oC1/" 

Y_ Uy.°,i 

YS3"" 

m+cG+ 1. ?- 

Mp
p

ymp0r.•
y 

3, 

Qa ,

Un

5oaNU; +
c'ad' 

0" y •

vdQ) .

Y'Q)
r

w:>' 

nva >
y

O° 

y '•
v• 

0Q) .

YQ)  

d

Yi-
0 .

5 '

00

0

co

vva
Q, i

O

ma°  

i

vV
0 ° 

O

mtiSN" . 

yYrl
y

y
Qrp0c% 

O

iQ" 

0 '

0

o

Lpi

Q% (

n-

U1Q"
l

tip"O

4+
p

Y

rcC= 

0

Q) 

o

ti

i

P, 

Cv, 

ti

Q'

ONN
a) 

5Ci  

i

0

cq30 '

D

pw

z > 

C

3 •

d

C6 "> 

or. 
O

vbCIS

d

CIS

U

vO
4r, 

Oy
y

O

CIS ° 

U

2

v. '

C 

oV 

NO

y

o ° 

0

0

o

p

ybU

U

U

A

p

Y

y" 

y

U

U

O

U

3

Y ". -

U , ' 

p

o

bba

9b

cd

a) 

UtV"- 

H

3

0

M

o

0

to

cd

o

O

Q." 

2," 

3

a 

O

co

Q) 

CISO ° 

O. 

Q) 

N

p

U

4d

Q) 

44

N

V  

N  

y

Q)  °  

0

4] 

p  

y

N , 

o

co

3

U

p, 

co

4" 

o

d

r1, 

0

0 '

C

d .. 

c .

c

a

0. 

cd

u

v) ¢ 

3  -

00  



cV .. 

by .. 

N

U

3

U + 

L," 

E

3

a

N

N

3 -

0bi)

O

O  '

C

O 

x . 

bA

a 

o

Z3

by

y

QU) 

Z3

U

o

4, ° 

co

CZ

Q, °

n-. 

N

O

U

c -

0

bA

y

Q

w

p° 

p

Qn

Y

U

O

N

O

y0

C 

p» 

P, 

Qn

y. 

bnz)
OA

cd

O

CZ

N

cn

U

cc

to

ol ° 

bOA

Ucuct
n

r 

O

CZ

N

110N
Oi

O

bq

N

p ;

C

3a "
C

O

O

O

y„ 

v

o0

O

O

O

y

6) 

c

U

0

oo

U

O

c 

a

Ct _ 

a

y  .? 

Z

a 

U

a' 

O

o

cn

o

U

I

00

O

M

N

ct

Q) 

702

O

O

N

L7 .° 

b [ 

Q+ 

y

M

i, 

c

bb

M .

O

iN• 

yp

N '_' 

4y

N

O .

b "'. ° + 

b

cz

N

QI

00

ilr

p

PLO

cz

m

u

cm

j. 

C5

N

ct3

Cd

O

O

to

U

N

N

N

N

x

U

co

O

P. 

to

p 

3

p

LIZ

U

y 

a03bb
C

4

Af

U
UcaOaI003 OO0303f. OC

MNONU
4-

rN00110
00N00oOM

ULnO

O

cz

00

7. 

M

M000



i

I:$ 

U7 

o

0 + 

U

iUC

b1D

pn

y

0  

0  

o

O

v

a> '

d

U

y -

d

Ucd

a

b

5 ° 

ci 

I

w. ' 

C7 >

o

o

o  ' ° ° 

0

1.

0

0to, 
U

a

U

o

a, 

c 

o. . 

PQ

o

N .. 

b

O° 

o

GG

a -

u ° 

W

A ° ° > 

N , 

N

iUG

3

0 ' 

O

y

U :; 

U

N

V

h

vi

o

N

d

y

O

N

n

U

b .. 

N .

fl > 

ti

U ¢ 

a) 

Y

a) !

Z

to

cd

to

n
U

y

U ° — 

N

a) 

rn

VJ

N

U + - 

i ;

y

iii

x

pM

O

1p

cd

d.•
4 _ • 

y

t - "

d

O

LOr  

Li

V

y

N

C

O

F

0

3

X

p

En + 

V

O

v 

y

s: '+ 

N

OQ '

C3

Ocz
p

N

O

CC ,+ 

i -

y + 

y

a) '

d

a) 

m

O

a) 

O

rn >>+' 

rQ

M

b

O

0

CO

to

U

o

u

Q, 

a 

c"" 

U

CO

bio

d  

a) 

ani

bio

U

4. 

a>

i

U .. 

V

v

rn

O - 

O

cz

u

m

Cl

In
cl

p

4 ° _ 

P, 

O

U

Q '

S'" 

A -

0

Cd'

soN
0

U

o -  

oco
p, 

Y

aoi

3

w `° toc '
mb

41, 

0

q

o

o

U 

CO

rnco

c;

j

QO '

o

OU
OW 

O

vrn
O

U ,  

a) 

4:
1

N

O

sN 

Oo °
o

o' ° 

D

o ,

t

o

W

Wp

rO

Vcoa ° 
o '

o

a0
C;

3 ' 

O

a 

b

o

o

to

o

y

N

P4

0 ° 

o

O > 

o

C>

11

OU -

o

w

U

on

O ° 

00

N °

O

U

o

b

U

w .

1

Qcn
y

Wo ° 
m 

N° 

on

W

rn

rn

H

U

oo

o ° 

u  

U

o

o

oO
cq33

rl

ll 

CO ° 

N

Aco
Q) 

O

W

0

a) — 

a) 

a) 

a) 

U

O

bA .-  

O

N

V .-, 

O

b

o

1p 

102

N

oN
G,  

od¢ 

ooc 

CL, 

p, 

F .

0

as

0

Ql

3' 

Na° 

3  

y

UN
Ya

o  =

oU

s

NP

o

o

L

o

ow '

C

u

N

0

O

QC'

sle
N

Q)

y

n4r

C7

O ^

C " 

O

OU

N

K

b >

0 > 

0

0

0 °° ; ° 

eqq
OpU

0

o °

cC

Uv

C14°)

Ln

o

Z

w

o

o  '

d

C

a

C

Co

cz

Cfj  ` 

w

N

7'

xN

Orn >- 
M

O

rA

o

O >, 

cz

2

wO
Onb

0N

0

o

o

2

o

o

Nm -
C

i

i '

w?
n

Q) 

0

cn

14 >, 

a
y

P, 

C13

G? >' 

s3

Q. '' °° ~ 

ca
o

Q

Q. + '

o? 

L" 

a) 

N

X

N

a)  

0 '^" 

U

O

N > 

Q

cod

C14 > 

O

U

N ~ °

O

cd

U

NO '

d

am >  > 

U

AC7
cd

P,  

Z

v 

W

o -

o

9 

U

Z  

9

O

C7

M0Q1



o

U

C'

sO
o ,, 

r ° 

O

0

U

t, 

4. 

P, 

b $.. 

C '

b

O

U ;

3 -

0

U

M

N ~ 
fl

4 -

d

a . 

n' -

d °'  

O -

y . 

U -

d

U

cdUO

0

co

y }

Oy

O •

U^p
I "

Q

00

4

O

Q> 

O

U

O

cC

a) 

m + 

a) (

y, 

0 >

t'. + 

w

C: ' ° .

b .~- 

G +,, 

O

4  

iYi

co

N

00

oo
ai

o

0
0' 

Cz

4" 

o

o

U°

o ~ 

O

oa) 
o ; 

yo

o

4-

45 ° 

cl

o

0'

U

U

C3 •• 

U5A• 
cz

bA . 

i3. 

N , 

c 

N

U

y

y . 

O

U

iia

Q

Cd

cz

v 

U " 

O '

b .

0

y - 

N

y

Zt

V

to

O

x> O

aaV

U'

OO  

y

U > 

04UU

epU
0

0

C13

0 ,

00YOt

o

U

O0 ° 
y -

oa °
ate

0

3o  

9

w

mo' ° 

O

lroDu

baCl) 
d ° 

f' 

4o> 

o

o ' 

0r, 

O

U

4a, 

4. 

c`

1

1

cz

2y
O ° 

O

300
0 ( 

asN
y`

n .

0

O

4. 

O ' 

O ,

r04
Cl, 

U

O > 

I

fl

y

j ' 

a) 

0

C  .

T ., 

U

y

y

cd

C;

l

to
Q) 

oU
o ° '

0

0 

0

q

o ^

a

U

pr.

cz

UU

d

UW . 

fbA
O

0

oo
o

Yv 

Uq 
O

o

o 

bDU

0

U

CZ

o

rn

v

dNO -

bD '•

v 

U

bU

a°) '

y

U

o , 

x

o

o°

aa

y

b

Ya? 

YbO .

0° 

Q 3 •.. 

O ^

w> 
i .

0. 

a

bCG3

03n

QGU0

csVvcz
0

u

0

s

U

O

0

aa
o

o

co

0

00
x

O

a

U0
Z

xl

O

o

o

U

O

cz

Oo
0 •* +

o

U

o 

o .

as

y

Ua
U

o -

0

o '

n

0

m-

0

00,° 
0

O

0

rl

p

41. 

O) 

n

o ° 

v

U

pM

a '

n'

9

0

o  

0

c) 

0  

0

CN° 

O

U (

V

U

cd

N , 

O

0A, 
vCo
U

ry)° 

oO
0

N

o

a

o

LO

U

a

v

0

O

o

a

rn

U

o

U

wU
y U

U

er

i••

i

3

U

o

M ""  , 

v •

b

3

cN  

O.

N.

04=
1

U

0

m

p

O

C;

j

CDs

9

N

U

U .

0

co (

ZO

sMO

4 

ce

onU +' 

ati

0

00pU
U

U

U

cnN
O " 

UL

O

O

O

O  

O

0

O > > 

N -

i 

U

ct

Q. _ 

V

L: 

O

Q. '

p

y (' 

CO

U

to

j

N

Q '

b

10

U ^ 

W 

Yi

O

toO
y

Q '

C

N

y

U

b

O0
N

a) 

U

U

co 

o

V

O

O

O

U  

O ° . ' 

d' 

O

U

o 

M  

d

as

U•

Cl

o00(
G

00

p, 

U

N

U

U •-- 

U

4 

Zi

U

U

O

t"" 

U

w

y -- 

c 

b

r.

0

H

U

N ~ 

N

M

pto
7

p

C ^" 

y

w

r

cn ~ 

a + 

w

U

r

O

O ^

C

a'"
i

O

O

O

0

Q, 

O > 

U

a) 

U

4 

O

a0( 

p".

0. 

3

Z

g

C"

13Z
3U

ImU
4c",

C 

o -

o = 

Ory

L7

ao

a

1
a, 

Mri00



N

bA

O

p

0  

Q

a) 

as

44p

0 -

d

as

N

U

Y

p

0

4ti

a

a

o°

n

a) 

4r 

t

1114)

O

U

0

4. 

q ° 

0

00 , 

q

3

o

10

U •

o

a, 

N

O

a) 

A. 

y • `

p

CJ

y

O

O" • 

0

y

Sx 

Li" 

bA

a) \

p

A

2

W" . 

n

a)  

a) 

W  

U

i-. 

C6

GO

to

C;

3

O

s ° ?; 

ice, 

N

O  

c 

U . 

r

W

Cq

0

ri

a) '•

Cys  

Y

a) 

y

x

N •

b

t. 

U

iw •, 

U

N

O ; 

Z

Eti

O

v

p

c ° 

to

40 -

d

to ' 

y

w

s. 

a) 

N

U

rn

ol

CAa) 

a

a) 

a) :: 

a

g

a) 

Y

b

N

o

y

a

Y

iq ° 

a) .. ° 

O

Ts

N

bocz

4° + > 

C, 

y

b

y

O

O

N

0

a) 

O

O

C;

3

at4Z4
C,

3

ni

y

o

a) 

a3

a 

O " +. 

O

tw

a 

p > 

U

o ° 

ll

O

a) ~ 

C

b

O

U

foo

N

U•°  

P > 

0

0

4u? 

a) 

O

oi

O

R! 

0

O '

b -

d ' 

O

O

O .

Y

N

nw

V1

a

Y

a? 

m

7:

1

c4`
np

O

i

U

U

Gaa)) > 

ys«

S

i 

Ua) 

O

O° 

0

O

0

N -

0

ca

0

NN

ti }" 

Uc0C3

O

Os. 
U

0cq3

crj

ami

y

Q ^

cy

w

W • 

R. ; ° 

Y

V

o

0

bo

10-

0

CA

b ,$ 

y

U ,- 

oo >, \

O

O

N

w

M "" 

cC

CC

0

V

W

O

y

N

p, " 

0

Y ° 

C> 

en

C,

3

00> 

d

cdrA

04

o -

aa

o

bC

o(Gc3
CU .

NO" •>, /

a) .

U'.
r

Y

EcI-

a.' 

dO ;' 

LU
p•

O •

a.Uc .+ 

y ,

c3, 

Uti1yc3a6) +

y' ^

Oa)' 

UZ ,

d>-., 

r^

OOO"JV, •

WV0V+ 

ra.+'

i •

NOZ.
UOy. •+

k+,

sU_; 

430"
ti' 

y` 

C• >~

7 '.>' ' 

0m_Y.O30aU.
i

1, 

0

dUc.•

bNi
q

o

o

COC) / =

p

O

O

Ch%

C5O

rU
0

O -

0

0

N

p

N

U ) 

Cd • 

a

0

CZ

w

v

c'

0

boN
0

1

GEA

U

fl

0 

ccz

44

O - .

pQ, 
w

O

ed

Op, 
O

czZCO
0 . 

U

0

OO

cz

0 '

o )^ 

U6
O4 ° 

o -

0

0

UN
O + °

O

oyOO) 
tew

pp
vO

Ocd

U

N .

O

O

el

U

10

O

O

O

cC

itZ
Y  

u

a4• 

4

p , 

V

O

co

to

OZ

ON

O

O

O

ct

O

04. 

C;

3

O

0

o

0 ) 

0

0

O

N-sO0

bO

U) 

b

y

0

U >

O

o, 

U

O'-^• 

YS,^

o •

tab7)
o

U «

s... 

a) 

O ' 

a  

aY

aa) 

U
O

Y> 

U

a)

o ° 

4ya. 

b  

b

ca " 

to . 

Ca

tC
s

0

U

O > 

C

N ° 

Oc

d ) 

Ic

d ) 

O

p

nO
M

cz

a) 

CN

N

c

r

a

O

O

O

w

0

O

O

N

cd

0a > 

U

O

cz

L14

0

ca

Ou

ai

EA - 

0

00

M  

C7 , 

o

Cd

4° 

3

C ° 

a

a °' ' 

a) `"  

O .- ' 

O

O

0

0

o

c°) 

O

ccs

a

c

p, 

o :~ > ° 

d , 

b

3

o

o .

y

O

Y

U

O

A

U

a) 

a) 

M

A

3

i •, 

y

0

t-' .

p

N

p ^

O

y

Im

0

0

M

bA

cq

0

u

C

4. 

S

CC

Y

Lr

r > • 

O (/ 

i

w .

0

CCS 

ti+ 

O + 

Y

Y

ti

O

ani .

a

yi /

O 

vOi

ami

rn 

o

p

O

a> 

3

v '

b

U

U

a) 

Oy

y

p

cn

O

U

a) 

V

y }+ 

CG ° '

Y

i3

C + 

r

C 

4 

N . 

e

O

a) 

v] 

r" • " >> 

U

Y

Q > >> 

Q

4" 

bA

U

a) 

0 " 

b

4 

i 

a) ": 

p

O

0. 

pyj

v 

co

O

U

v  

U

pA

v 

U .  

Cl)  

S . 

4

i" 

bo ., 

O - : '.

y

co

F. 

N

a) 

X

tet '. 

0

Y .. 

p . 

cd

U

O

U

a

cd

I.: 

N

U

d

N

4 .- 

a

s

14

a) 

d

U

U 

d ( 

a

U

U ° :~ 

w

Mri0

U

rn

tia) 

O000
O
4" 

00

x

C) M

o
x

ENA

3 > 

a

E- 

N

00U
E- 

a, 

N

N

bA

O

p

0  

Q

a) 

as

44p

0 -

d

as

N

U

Y

p

0

4ti

a

a

o°

n

a) 

4r 

t

1114)

O

U

0

4. 

q ° 

0

00 , 

q

3

o

10

U •

o

a, 

N

O

a) 

A. 

y • `

p

CJ

y

O

O" • 

0

y

Sx 

Li" 

bA

a) \

p

A

2

W" . 

n

a)  

a) 

W  

U

i-. 

C6

GO

to

C;

3

O

s ° ?; 

ice, 

N

O  

c 

U . 

r

W

Cq

0

ri

a) '•

Cys  

Y

a) 

y

x

N •

b

t. 

U

iw •, 

U

N

O ; 

Z

Eti

O

v

p

c ° 

to

40 -

d

to ' 

y

w

s. 

a) 

N

U

rn

ol

CAa) 

a

a) 

a) :: 

a

g

a) 

Y

b

N

o

y

a

Y

iq ° 

a) .. ° 

O

Ts

N

bocz

4° + > 

C, 

y

b

y

O

O

N

0

a) 

O

O

C;

3

at4Z4
C,

3

ni

y

o

a) 

a3

a 

O " +. 

O

tw

a 

p > 

U

o ° 

ll

O

a) ~ 

C

b

O

U

foo

N

U•°  

P > 

0

0

4u? 

a) 

O

oi

O

R! 

0

O '

b -

d ' 

O

O

O .

Y

N

nw

V1

a

Y

a? 

m

7:

1

c4`

np

O

i

U

U

Gaa)) > 
ys«

S

i 

Ua) 

O

O° 

0

O

0

N -

0

ca

0

NN
ti }" 

Uc0C3

O

Os. 

U

0cq3

crj

ami

y

Q ^

cy

w

W • 

R. ; ° 

Y

V

o

0

bo

10-

0

CA

b ,$ 

y

U ,- 

oo >, \

O

O

N

w

M "" 

cC

CC

0

V

W

O

y

N

p, " 

0

Y ° 

C> 

en

C,

3

00> 

d

cdrA

04

o -

aa

o

bC

o(Gc3 CU .

NO" •>, /

a) .

U'.r

Y

EcI-

a.' 

dO ;' 

LUp•

O •

a.
Uc .+ 

y ,

c3, 

Uti1yc3a6) +

y' ^

Oa)' 

UZ ,

d>-., 

r^

OOO"JV, •

WV0V+ 

ra.+'
i •

NOZ.

UOy. •+

k+,

sU_; 

430"ti' 

y` 

C• >~

7 '.>' ' 

0m_Y.O30aU.i

1, 

0

dUc.•

bNi

q

o

o

COC) / =

p

O

O

Ch%

C5O

rU
0

O -

0

0

N

p

N

U ) 

Cd • 

a

0

CZ

w

v

c'

0

boN

0

1

GEA

U

fl

0 

ccz

44

O - .

pQ, 

w

O

ed

Op, 

O

czZCO

0 . 

U

0

OO

cz

0 '

o )^ 

U6

O4 ° 

o -

0

0

UN

O + °

O

oyOO) 

tew

pp

vO

Ocd

U

N .

O

O

el

U

10

O

O

O

cC

itZ

Y  

u

a4• 

4

p , 

V

O

co

to

OZ

ON

O

O

O

ct

O

04. 

C;

3

O

0

o

0 ) 

0

0

O

N-sO0

bO

U) 

b

y

0

U >

O

o, 

U

O'-^• 

YS,^

o •

tab7)
o

U «

s... 

a) 

O ' 

a  

aY
aa) 

UO

Y> 

U

a)

o ° 

4ya. 

b  

b

ca " 

to . 

Ca

tC
s

0

U

O > 

C

N ° 

Oc

d ) 

Ic

d ) 

O

p

nO

M

cz

a) 

CN

N

c

r

a

O

O

O

w

0

O

O

N

cd

0a > 

U

O

cz

L14

0

ca

Ou

ai

EA - 

0

00

M  

C7 , 

o

Cd

4° 

3

C ° 

a

a °' ' 

a) `"  

O .- ' 

O

O

0

0

o

c°) 

O

ccs

a

c

p, 

o :~ > ° 

d , 

b

3

o

o .

y

O

Y

U

O

A

U

a) 

a) 

M

A

3

i •, 

y

0

t-' .

p

N

p ^

O

y

Im

0

0

M

bA

cq

0

u

C

4. 

S

CC

Y

Lr

r > • 

O (/ 

i

w .

0

CCS 

ti+ 

O + 

Y

Y

ti

O

ani .

a

yi /

O 

vOi

ami

rn 

o

p

O

a> 

3

v '

b

U

U

a) 

Oy

y

p

cn

O

U

a) 

V

y }+ 

CG ° '

Y

i3

C + 

r

C 

4 

N . 

e

O

a) 

v] 

r" • " >> 

U

Y

Q > >> 

Q

4" 

bA

U

a) 

0 " 

b

4 

i 

a) ": 

p

O

0. 

pyj

v 

co

O

U

v  

U

pA

v 

U .  

Cl)  

S . 

4

i" 

bo ., 

O - : '.

y

co

F. 

N

a) 

X

tet '. 

0

Y .. 

p . 

cd

U

O

U

a

cd

I.: 

N

U

d

N

4 .- 

a

s

14

a) 

d

U

U 

d ( 

a

U

U ° :~ 

w

Mri0



U
1.-

0

cd

0

O

N

O

Q >> 

p

j, +"  

O

m

U

U

C" > 

UO .

fl

r 

A • 

O

0 .

4

U .

0

O '

O .

y >>

C4

U

C'°' 

0 ~

O '

b

cri
U

Z

V) 

O

s`

n, 

3' 

03

o

j

y +=- 

If

o

C8

o

p°.

U

U

o

U

moU
U %

O

d

U

O

cz

0> 

O

O °

p

O •

b

co

w

o

M> 

mm

o-

i

U

3

U

o

CO

co -

C > 

OtU

O

o ° 

U ' 

U+ 

cz

co

oo, 

cv

o

o

o

o

CJ

o

0" 

0

U

o

M >, 

o

O

t8

W

b 

ioti

W

yIY

N

y

OO 
O>

o

rN

y: 

U

C;,

O

cn

0,

W ' 

O , 

O

y

U ,

U

r0y

COD

H

v] 

y

o > :

o

ami ° 

U

on

ti

x

0

g

3

a

Q, 

o

o ~" 

C.° ' 

3

aoi

i

V

yw

w

C4

C

o

a

o „ 

N

cn

O

y

N

U 

d

04 (
4-, 

Oyo
s,  

ct `-

4

0

O

O

V

Oo 

a° 

o1, 

co

w -

d

O 

o

n — 

A — 

o

3 

o

03

U

cz

r

as

o ' 

a'

a • 

yy , 

i4. 
w

o

o 

rboC

o

U

UO
4, 

W

tiO2

OU

VOo,
n

ayps. •° 

Qa

U

bt Uo , , 

0

o

oUp

UU
U

d

dmsUU ~
O

O 

4r

4, 

rUU
U

O

bU

U

pGyU
h

V •

rUo

U>, 

U° °

Uo' 

rA

ccNvC;

3r > 
eU
C,';' 

O ~° > 

1o) 

o -° 

a >" 

o

U

4, °

o

o4, 
w

x

fl

oa

U

04° - 

0> 

oo °

U3

b 

U

o

o

p

o

aa°

30

U

ya3i ° 

yo
OO

b.° 

o

O  '

flou
lw 

o   

b. 

w

co

U

iama) 
po

3

7 "

d'

d > 

o

a

p

a

U

o

O

U "

o, 

ca

El

Ubo
A

ao3Ui

vUUp , 
cl

O

y

rn

OUti
cy'" 

D ,

n

G

c "  

N 

o '

O

U

o— 

O

w

m (

1, 

VI

cz

4-
4

U

w

U

O -(:

I -

a .

E

O

UctiU
s., 

V> 

cn

o

U

co

4, 

O  

C

W

bvn

O>,'

A

OU '

U" ,+

c4U . ° °°
c 

A

o

o

o '

n '

D

C,

3

Q) 

CJ° ° >, 

El

O

0

o

Ce -

dcq

U

oU
o

0

U ° 

Q) 

ti

W

p >

O

Ro

b

o ._ .

Q0  

Q, /

t

U

0

p > 

Umofl
bA

c1, 

O .

si

o

1U  

o

p'00- 

U

o

po

0

cz

oN
an

o~

ca

U

N

U > 

U

o

U- 

OvO3"i,'

o

a

O

pU
HU

on 

3

wa .

c

y

3o .

g

ca

oU

on

b

o

o

U ° 

a °

ao
U° 

o

U

o

0



Gj

C) 

bA
P 

o

0

0 ° ° 

U ° 

3

Z

3

b °

Y' 

y

N

OU ° 

O

0 -" 

o

O

4• 

y, 

N

U

0

3 0

El

N

0

0 > 

b

bn " 

o '

on

m" 

o >°, 

b

a ° 

0

0 °' "` 

o ' -

d

3

ca0

CZ

b4

O

U ' 

a

Abp
U

6, ° 

N

0 . ° 

yrn

p

Y

y

y " 

cd

O

Y

r-- 

y

0

N

O

0

U

y

N

N

0 -

d

0 ' • 

C,

3c"   

co  "- 

U5U

N

y  

t . 

Y

b  

O'A '

C .

0U
p

o

C3

U >, 

00
Q. + 

0

sy ° 

U

cr3

o' 

0 «

i .

d

CO) 

0

0

0

U

vi

A

k

4

In

O

0

o

a  -

d

v 

o

Y+:- ' 

V

bA

N

000
w

O

y

p

ri) '

O

H - '

n

bb

r

N • ^>" _ 

Y '- 

y

Cf

bA

cC

bA

dU

ca

o

u

cd

0

O ' 

U .

4

0

y

ca  

U

0

cd •. 

0

3 '

b '

C

0

o

f. 

GJ

O

CZ

o

Y• /

yO

acvc
C 

Cy

o

y

b010
4. - 

cd

c

o

o  

In

p

OU

0

p

3

amp

0

0

0 `

3 , 

ti

Y

b

GJ

In

O

0

t; 

y

00 +' ` 

s

O

c - 

s

c 

N

O

O

U

s: 

Q

ai

cd

0 ..

4

N >, 

tYyC

c3 ~ " 

A }

Uy

O

U

y

U ° 

O + >^, 

Y

U ¢ 

Q" 

U 

Y

cz

bA

r0

0

o - 

Y

0

as

cz

i

y

F- 

0

0 . 

O  

0  

co '>

O!, ;+

q

Q)  

o >, 

y

U

U

o

iUi

Lt

a

V] 

o

o

Y 

0

C  > 

os

Y " ... 

N

0

1—'

0 ' 

j •  

YS", '  

N

N -

G > 

O

O  

U

3

0

cz .., 

c;  

Ei

0

cz

9

t8

b

ai

0

bU

3

U ,-

Cl

cz

o

bq

0

os

o

on

y

O

N

N

vJ

N .... 

v + + 

p.
i , " 

N .

s:: + 

co  

N

CC

0

O

o

b

3

0

0° 

3

a

3

ch

C

Y

U

N ^

0

N

U

U ° .

moi

to

tr

vC) 
rA

GD

U

Y

Q

V

0

C0

p •.

1

r-

1  

Y .+

q

bA

w  

Y

Y1

a. }°

yy

o °' 

3

3 

y

M

t8

u

0 -

d >

1

o

a

cn ° 

o  

0

3

0

o•° 

o

1

r+

4

cl

r0' 

ny

Y

O .

fl

O

0

i- 

S"

i

O

p " 

0+ 

0

Y

O

Y

p

0

0

CQ

3

ti

b ... - 

5

0

a4

cz

Y

Y

N

N

o

a• 

0

b

vn

m

Y >, 

3

ca ° 

o ., 

1

o

N >, 

Y

rn

a
c 

co = . 

N  

p

N

0 «

i , • 

i> -

0

0 +' >, 

bq

co

b
c 

P. 

Y

r. > 

Y

i. 

cd

cZ

0

c 

c 

P-  + '' 

cG

m

0

as

O

N

0

0

p

O

v 

rn

0

rn

F. "' 

y. 

cC

m

y

G" 

O

0

4" 

0

On > ' 

i- 

co
i --

i

0

Y

VI 

i

3 °> 

o °' 

m

o

p

b

0  

cow -

0

bn  

o

0 , 

Q..., 

0

Y

r -
i

O

p

N

dl -

S4

0

V

f3

0

U

r" 

a± 

crCS ,

b

s . 

v .  

r/

1

O .. 

L°
i

L: 

vUi " 

r

cCl .

ter

cn

d

0

it '

d + 

p

bA

0 > 

Oi.
i'' 

cz

m

Q+ ... 

m

En '  

U

N

vi

Y 

1

Y

o

3

an

0

o   

Y   

0, 

p  

o  -

b

0

3      

0 = 

a

0

0

o

o

o

v

o

3 •

o

a ' ° 

3

0

o

x $ 

o 

r, 

1

W

104-
4

o3' 

0

o

N .

n , 

U

U -

d

0

b . '

b

Y

bo

O

Y

0 

1

0 ° 

o , 

p . 

0

0Ct
0

0

0

cq3

0

o- 

0

0 

O

bU  

C

o •

0

a

o

o

U

i> 

o ° 

U

U •

o ° 

a

0

5

o, 

o

cz

0

Yo r.

0

0

Y

f, 

Y

V1

3

Y

V1

O

P. 

El

W

4. 

I

3 .., 

4% 

Y

O

Y . 

3>, 

V

3

P- 

Y

U

J

Y

I

M0M







Item C



Item D



E











F



iivcO

U  C

4-

1

3O
U

v

YU -

CY

O

C

o

tY3

Ov

YU

a

0
O
U

0a  af6

m

N

E

N

C

C "

0

3

mM

E

Q

a

c
C

O

OC

0

fC

rl

L

C

Yo

L

L

4- 

C

m

Z

0C

N

Cw

M

a 

T  C  fc0  C

a

o

4- 

v

O

L

Y

Y

p
L

Y  

4- 

L

dQ

Y

C

N

Om

N

aJ

aJ

UO

o

aL

CL

O

m .

c

4-- 

0FO

YfC

3

a

O

v

La) 

tC

t

a

Y— 
WCotw

aJ

C  

N

a, 

aJ

aJ

c

UO

L

o

O

L -

p

O

Y

aJ > 

L

0

C

N

O

L

O

v

00

t

c

L

3

O

Q- 

a

E

Ea
Q

vi :
3

N

O

C

4--' 

U

O

L1 > 

O

O

Z

Z

Cm
v

UaJvOva 
0O0LOO

00

E

O1aJN

m >= 

C

U

a) a

0

Q

cuM

N

E

r, 

a, 
ME

Q

U
3

LL? 

OCU

O

LM

N

m .

6

CL

L

mc

E
C

O

Q

O

N

N

00

O

N

4- 

00

O "

0
aJ

C

h

O

a

cC
U

N

w
O

00

Z

m

lD  

O

O

O

in

U

Y

vii

n
a: 

o

o

Ln

aJ

L

U

al

a) 

N

m

a) 

0 '

a

3

a

Y

L

Oo
Y' 

aC+ 

QJ

C

E

C

m

000

3

f

0

c

a

a>, 

N

a, p

0o

x

c

N

n

V) 

pai C

3

N

4J

a) 

41

0

a1

a1

aJ

3

ns

3

CC

Y

L

Y

00

iCa

cp

O

0

a-% 

U

aJ

s

aJ

O

Q

o

v

a

Q

aJv

a) L

Y3

Ua) 

Y

L

c

3

3

o

a

3

a1

O

N

t

t

aJ

O

m

a) 

fC

C

i

Y

Y

N

U

C

f6

0

Y

c60

H

a

ate•+ 

V1

C

0

Y

a

C

QJ

Ca, 

O

a
CU
Lfp

C

L- 

0

C

C

0

cC

O

O

A

OC

OL

0

E

L

v

Cp

O

C- 

m

rCC

U

CO

Q— 

Q

gyp, 

m

v

O

N

U

C

O

ro

0

N

N

c°

o

a

3

v

L

M

on

E

O

3

ai

v

ONaJ

C

UC

C

r

L

Cin

Y

LN

U
U

C

en

L

m

L

Q

O

v

p

O

O

aJ

0

OM

O

O

C

a

aJ

a) 

a

C

p

a1L

An

L

M

C

to
L

U41

0

YN

C

a
a) 

aJ

E

p

L

tC

a) ; 

tCY

O

p

m

3

tC

1

Q

aJ

YL

3O

a

Ln

U

YALI
0

O

YC

Q

NY

O

toa

ate+ 

HaJ

aJ

pU

t

6

OAC

Q) 

v

C

ns

t

3

u

Y

o

ocn

v

tiA

3

4

a, 

o

C

a ° 

0

C

aJ

0°'
0

0

u

T

axi

tiD

L

a

0

aJ

E

p

O

000

OL

UL

aJ

N

N+ 

E

C

Ci

v

a

C

4- 

O

Er0

C

C

Y

Oa N

p0

O

O

i

3

C

cC

a1

v

N

aJ

3

a`- 

a

Y

H

0, 

r

u

Y

C° 

N

c

cLoa

CO

a

c

O

O

0, 

aJ

v

a, 

a

o

LM

U
M

a 

U

U }, 

vi

aJ

O

L

m

CL
4- 

O

L1

YQ

C0

U

0

3

L

aJ

a) 

0CJ

a +' 

E

CaJ

lV

N

w

a

CSA

LA

E

O

a

L

E

U

L

U

L0

LO

U

a! 

a) 

a, 

0' 

on

iv

O

CU

o

O

o° 

a1

Y

C

C

O

3

dA

L0

Y

a° 

3

N

Lp

L3

N

yv

C

U- 

fCu

H

a

v

aci

C

c

C

o

on

Q

O

U

La, 

Y

a, 

Y3

LO° 

0

30> 

a1

O

C

C

fC

0

Q1

N

a

C]. 

o

U

a, 

C

f0

C

U

LU

OY

tU

aJL

C

C

OL

N

WZ

t

N

UOC

YO

U

aJ

U

aj

V1

N_ C

aj

C2

C

C

U

m

a + 

V\
f

d

C

E

L

C

In

aJ

O

C

Y

rY

is

Y

E

U' 

O

Q

Y

a, 

p

w

aN

E

3

L

E

v- 

CO

U

L

aJ

C

E

u

cC

cc

Z

O

aJ

v,, 

M

c

w

OL

O

p

a

C

O

t3

O

C

YO

cC

Y

O

o

0

E

m

m> 

C

0

n

u

M

L- 

a

t
o

a

c

Y

C

CUv
u

OL

00

v

L

O

C

u

a

c

a) 

3

C

Y

to

a) 

a

O

O

u 

1

a

Q 
C

d

O

a

fl

aJ

cC

U

1

c

r0

m

O

tYo

L

a

aJ += 

Ln

4- 

LLJ0
0o

00

3

w

E

w

E" 

m

a

0

E> 

c

L

o

co  

E

3

C

vCD. 

bD

v, 

0

3

O

v

c4- 
ai

w, 

ui

Lu

Op

O

z

O

Q- 

aj

tca

o

N

C

L

O

N

L-+ 

f6

C

Q

a

C

p

a

y_ 

C

0

C

O

0

O

O

aJ

O

v

O

0

a

m

CA

y) 

a)— 

C

p

aJ

0

C

a

CL

U

0

U

4- 

pLL

L3

Ma

C

A
F- 

3

0) 

O

v- 

n

V

C

tU

a) 

ns

aJ

a1

O

M

4 - 

C

Q

C

0

W

U

VfJJ

C

O

Cm

Z

U4- 

N

t> en

41

C

N

C

p

Eto

Eca

La) 

E

s

U

ofE

OU

CL

0

0' 

C

a3

L> 

uy

L

30

u

c

O

tCp

c

a 

c

L

viN

Q

Y

O
L

Q

L

O

W

U

i+ 

cO

mU

30

U

w

aJ

aJ

a

w

Q) a1

C

L

N

ia1

of

3

a- 

o

o

Q

L- 

U

CL

H-

0

p

OL

Q. 

C

O

c

00

a

c

a

a

E

m

V

v

o

Q

c

a

0

v

aJ

aJ

E

v

v

Q

w

a) 

a

t

o

v

rC

0

O

N

v

ca

Z

co0

oCQ

0

a

p

WO

a

aJ

C

v

iii

v

dA

v

O

Q

0

Q

a

r0a

a1p

d
L/) 

m
c

E

U

v

ry
pcL0

O

v

N
U

U

c

Q
f6

OL

mC

Q: 

VI

L

M

0C

a) 

0

V

t0

E

0n

p

L

N

IA

O

U

um

E

o

a

3

cC

a

s

a

m

a

s

Q

iivcO

U  C

4-

1

3OU

v

YU -

CY

O

C

o

tY3

Ov

YU

a

0
O
U

0
a  af6

m

N

E

N

C

C "

0

3

mM

E

Q

a

c
C

O

OC

0

fC

rl

L

C

Yo

L

L

4- 

C

m

Z

0C

N

Cw

M

a 

T  
C  fc0  C

a

o

4- 

v

O

L

Y

Y

p
L

Y  

4- 

L

dQ

Y

C

N

Om

N

aJ

aJ

UO

o

a
L

CL

O

m .

c

4-- 

0FO

YfC

3

a

O

v

L
a) 

tC

t

a

Y— 
W
Co

tw

aJ

C  

N

a, 

aJ

aJ

c

UO

L

o

O

L -

p

O

Y

aJ > 

L

0

C

N

O

L

O

v

00

t

c

L

3

O

Q- 

a

E

Ea
Q

vi :

3

N

O

C

4--' 

U

O

L1 > 

O

O

Z

Z

C
m
v

UaJvOv
a 

0O0LOO

00

E

O1aJN

m >= 

C

U

a) a

0

Q

cuM

N

E

r, 

a, 

ME

Q

U3

LL? 

OCU

O

LM

N

m .

6

CL

L

mc

E
C

O

Q

O

N

N

00

O

N

4- 

00

O "

0
aJ

C

h

O

a

cC
U

N

wO

00

Z

m

lD  

O



G

REMOVED



ORDINANCE NO. 2023 - ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 117: PUSHCART AND MOBILE FOOD UNIT VENDORS 
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro recognizes the need to maintain correct descriptions of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances; and  

WHEREAS, after a review of Chapter 117, city staff recommend updating several section of Chapter 117 as 
noted below.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, that section 117.01, section 
117.04 and section 117.08 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, are hereby amended as 
follows:  

Chapter 117 

§ 117.01 AREA COVERED.

The City Manager or his or her designee may issue a permit for the serving of food and non-alcoholic beverages
from a mobile pushcart or mobile food unit on government-owned sidewalks, public and private parking lots and 
publicly- or privately-owned property in the area of the city limits know as the Central Business District. 

§ 117.04 ISSUANCE OF PERMITS.

No permit for the operation of a pushcart or mobile food unit may be issued unless the application is complete and
unless the following requirements are met: 

   (A)   The pushcarts or mobile food units’ location as shown on the drawing submitted must be done in such a 
manner that at least four feet unobstructed space (as measured from the streetside edge of the sidewalk) remains on 
the sidewalk or pedestrian way for the passage of pedestrians. 

   (B)   Pushcarts or mobile food units shall not be located within 50 100 feet of any currently established restaurant. 

   (C)   Pushcarts or mobile food units shall provide a refuse receptacle and shall dispose of waste generated through 
their operation at the end of each day in an approved landfill or drop-off container site. City receptacles may not be 
utilized for this purpose. No liquid waste or grease may be poured into any tree pit, storm drain, gutter pan, sidewalk, 
or any other public space. Grease cannot be released into the City's sanitary sewer system. 

   (D)   Pushcarts or mobile food units shall comply with all Wayne County Health Department requirements. 

   (E)   No pushcart or mobile food unit shall be located within 100 feet of any other legally established pushcart or 
mobile food unit. This shall not apply to special events approved by the City. 

   (F)   Pushcarts or mobile food units shall be located in such a manner so as to not interfere with the commerce of 
existing businesses. 

   (G)   Except as elsewhere permitted, the operation of a pushcart or mobile food unit shall involve no permanent 
alteration to or encroachment upon any street, sidewalk, pedestrian way or parking lot. 

   (H)   There shall be adequate lighting available in the area of the pushcart or mobile food unit for the safety of the 
patrons and public use of the sidewalk. 

   (I)   A filing fee of $100 is required to accompany all permit applications or renewals. 

   (J)   A $500 bond or security deposit shall be filed with the City Clerk prior to operation of the pushcart or mobile 
food unit. 

 (J) (K)   Mobile food units shall be located in such a way as to not constitute a nuisance. Mobile food units shall meet 
all applicable setbacks throughout the city as determined by the City of Goldsboro. of the Central Business District. 

(K)  (L)   All mobile food units shall be removed at the end of the business day and may not be located overnight 
within the city limits Central Business District. 

(L)   No pushcart or mobile food unit may utilize the right-of-way to serve customers without obtaining a permit. This 
shall not apply to special events approved by the City. 

(M)   No pushcart or mobile food unit may be parked in a location that prohibits or restricts access to private 
property. A minimum five (5) foot spacing is required from any driveway, measured from the driveway apron. 

(N)   The pushcart or mobile food unit must be located at least five (5) feet from any utility box, utility vault, 
handicapped ramp, or emergency call box. The food truck must be located at least fifteen (15) feet from a fire 
hydrant. 



§ 117.08 PERMIT REVOCATION.

The City Manager may revoke a permit issued pursuant to this section in if he or she finds that the pushcart or
mobile food unit operator has: 

   (A)   Deliberately misrepresented or provided false information in the permit application. 

   (B)   Violated any provision of city or county Health Department regulations. 

   (C)   Violated any law, regulation, or ordinance regarding the possession, sale, transportation or consumption of 
intoxicating beverages or controlled substances. 

   (D)   Operated the pushcart or mobile food unit in such a manner as to create a public nuisance or to constitute a 
hazard to the public health, safety, or welfare; specifically including failure to keep the area around the pushcart or 
mobile food unit free of refuse. 

   (E)   Failed to maintain any health, business or other permit or license required by law for the operation of a 
pushcart or mobile food unit operation. Before the revocation of a permit, the City Manager or his or her designee 
shall notify the permit holder of the intent to revoke the permit and the reasons therefor and shall afford the permit 
holder a reasonable opportunity to appear and be heard on the questions of such revocation. After the hearing, the 
City Manager, or his or her designee, shall notify the permit holder in writing of his or her decision regarding the 
revocation. Such revocation may be appealed to the City Council. 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 15TH day of May, 2023. 

____________________________ 
David Ham, Mayor  

Attested by:  

__________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

April 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item H



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
April 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  May 4, 2023 

• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on April 5th.  Members of GYC and staff
volunteered for the Greater Goldsboro Kiwanis Run on April 22nd.

• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on April 11th

and held a public meeting for the FY23 Annual Action Plan.  The CCRD also hosted a Fair Housing Roundtable at the
Wayne County Public Library on April 27th.  The MLK Subcommittee met on April 4th & April 25th.

• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on April 20th.

• Community Relations Activities:
1. Staff served on the Solid Waste Superintendent Interview Panel on April 5th & April 6th.
2. Staff attended the regular monthly meeting of JCPC on April 14th.
3. Staff facilitated a Juneteenth planning meeting on April 24th.
4. Staff attended the regular monthly meeting of CALM on April 25th.
5. Department meetings & trainings were held on April 12th, 17th, 19th, and 25th.

• Community Development Activities:
1. Staff attended a Community Development software virtual demo on April 4th & April 21st.
2. Staff reviewed CDBG Public Services application with Literacy Connections on April 6th.
3. Staff attended a HUD TA Kick-off meeting with HUD-hired consultant (Abt Associates), HUD Rep., & Finance on

April 11th.
4. Staff attended Choice Neighborhood Planning meetings on April 12th, 26th, and 27th.
5. Staff attended Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) monthly meeting on April 12thand Region 10 Coordinated

Entry weekly meeting on April 26th.
6. Staff published the FY23-24 AAP Draft plan for 30-day public review and comment on April 14th.
7. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood HUD site visit at West Haven on April 18th & 19th.
8. Staff published the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan Draft for 15-day public review and comment on April 22nd.
9. Staff met with the Procurement Manager to discuss CDBG projects on April 24th.
10. Staff completed an on-site monitoring visit of HOME Rental Units at the Highlands on April 27th.
11. Staff met with Procurement Mgr. & IT Director to review Community Development Software RFP on April 27th.
12. Staff attended a homebuyer ribbon cutting ceremony for HOME Downpayment recipient on April 28th.
13. Staff engaged in 1 virtual consultation with HUD Representative for the month of April.



• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and fifteen (15) requests for assistance for the month of
April. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.

2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 1
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 23 

2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
April 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  May 4, 2023 

Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint            Resolution 

Unfair Treatment: 
Unruly neighbor not 
reprimanded 

Complaint 
filed/Contacted 
property manager who 
shared the agency’s 
upcoming resolve. 

Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested    Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 5 Application /Application follow-up provided 
First-Time Homebuyer 6 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 

application  
Housing 2 Provided Community Resource List & Referred to 4Day Movement 
Flooding from 
neighbor’s yard 

1 Dudley Resident/Referred to Wayne County Government 

Summer Youth 
Employment 

1 Referred to Wayne County Government 

Total Requests: 15 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
April 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: May 11, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 14 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 20+ existing business owners.  

• Working with the ACM to facilitate updates to TIGER 16 grant agreement to update scope. 
• South Center Street Development discussions with ACM and consultant. 
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 

in March. Working with a consultant to prepare a Dept. of Commerce Transformation Grant application for 
stabilization. Due May 6. 

• COG budget planning.  
• Updates to Council Parking Presentation – scheduled for May 1st.   
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website. Working with IT Department to move over 

to the new site.   
• Attended HUD Site Visit for Choice Neighborhoods Planning. Staff continuing to work with Choice 

Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls.  
Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Actively working with Randall Gross, a consultant for residential development needs - 400 blocks of S. Center St. 
• Staff working on determining placement of potential parking signage.  

• Preparing a large wall mural to repaint once funding is identified for the final installation.  

• Kayla attended Administrative Professional’s Celebration.  

• Staff is meeting with NC Main Street staff monthly re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• Staff held an Incubator Discussion with potential stakeholders for a downtown small business incubator.  

• Staff participated in Purple Up on April 21. 

• Attended an internship discussion with UMO faculty for Spring 2024. 

• Attended United Way’s Volunteer Celebration Ceremony, recognizing a DGDC nominee.  

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and 
Planning Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion, TRC with Planning 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• DGDC Merchants, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees met on March 7th , Executive 

Committee and DGDC Board of Directors on March 8th.   
• Earth Day Cleanup Effort with Nahunta Friends Church on April 23rd.  
• Council Retreat presentations – February 22nd and 23rd   

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: Center Street Jam, May 4 – August 10,  3 Eagles Rotary Beer Fest, May 13, Alumni Weekend events 

May 27 and 28, Arts Council Benefit Concert, June 3 
• Erin is participating in Leadership Wayne, October 2022 through May 2023.  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 
• Coming Soon, The Firm at 156 S. Center; Social South 144 N Center (May); McLamb Wellness, 102 E Walnut 

(May); Simply Photo Studio, 131 E Walnut (May); Spice Bouquet, 112 E Mulberry; 120 E Mulberry St 
• Arts Council will relocate to 139 W Walnut St.  
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 14,932; 32,826 reach  



1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
April 2023 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.  
Date Prepared:  05-02-23 

Stoney Creek Greenway 
• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600

linear feet; 
• This project is 98% complete.

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project.

Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 
• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering

report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 
• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval;
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle (MOP) Plant Expansion Project and

staff is working with MOP, WithersRavenel, and TA Loving through the design process.

Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections  
• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date;
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for March/April 2023.

Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 
• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;
• CDM Smith has commenced preliminary work on the MRF Study.

Stormwater Inventory Project 
• Pilot area work has begun;
• Staff continues to work with CDM Smith on project data and details;
• Projected completion July/August.
•  

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395;
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022;
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project.

Lead and Copper Inventory 
• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories.

Pavement Condition Survey 
• Staff is preparing advertisement and contract documents.



2 

Turning Movement Count Inventory 
• Staff is preparing bid documents.

SJAFB MAG Meter 
• This project is in the design phase.

NCSU Floodprint Project 
• Staff is working with NCSU on potential project applications.



1 

FINANCE   
APRIL 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: May 8, 2023 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues March-22 Adjusted Budget March-23 Collected
General Fund 36,408,266$    46,706,187$        35,110,838$    75.17%
Utility Fund 15,327,751      24,870,166          17,569,151      70.64%
Downtown District Fund 92,939 117,019 101,108           86.40%
Occupancy Tax Fund 812,215           1,196,488            847,438           70.83%
Stormwater Fund 1,508,141        2,203,023            1,594,249        72.37%
     Total 54,149,311$    75,092,882$        55,222,783$    73.54%

Expenditures
General Fund 29,815,939$    46,706,187$        33,080,102$    70.83%
Utility Fund 9,429,334        24,870,166 11,712,813 47.10%
Downtown District Fund 66,939 117,019 51,799 44.27%
Occupancy Tax Fund 743,088           1,196,488 772,802 64.59%
Stormwater Fund 1,635,084        2,203,023 1,397,230 63.42%
     Total 41,690,383$    75,092,882$        47,014,746$    62.61%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

March-22 Adjusted Budget March-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 18,099,312$    19,271,704$        18,297,790$    94.95%
Charges for Services 19,360,060      30,037,807          21,100,099      70.25%
Revenue Other Agencies 9,171,717        16,800,402          9,641,043        57.39%
Other Revenues 5,112,343        3,639,671            2,882,815        79.21%
Fund Balance - 2,014,301            - 0.00%
Shared Services 2,405,880        3,328,996            3,301,036        99.16%
     Total 54,149,311$    75,092,882$        55,222,783$    73.54%

Expenditures
Labor 21,725,208$    29,714,622$        24,243,537$    81.59%
Non-Labor 19,965,175      45,378,260          22,771,209      50.18%
     Total 41,690,383$    75,092,882$        47,014,746$    62.61%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual March-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           18,280$  28,287$           
Surplus 154,548$         -$  3,876$             

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report - April 2023
Prepared: tlw 5/9/2023 8:22 AM
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.
Reviewed: cfg 5/9/2023 10:07 AM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$  22,201$             -$  22,201$             -$  
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F -$  43,202$             10,000$             73,557$             (30,355)$           
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F -$  19,523$             -$  19,523$             -$  
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F -$  22,910$             -$  22,910$             -$  
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 328,479$  328,479$                -$  216,456$          -$  216,456$          -$  
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$  214,732$                -$  49,554$             -$  49,554$             -$  
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,137$  351,137$                -$  170,649$          -$  170,649$          -$  
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 237,076$  237,076$                -$  28,472$             -$  28,472$             -$  
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$  427,303$                -$  132,380$          -$  133,699$          (1,319)$             
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,122$  354,122$                -$  87,559$             -$  87,987$             (428)$                 
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 250,738$  250,738$                -$  24,002$             -$  32,592$             (8,590)$             
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F -$  -$  2,334$               19,107$             (19,107)$           
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F -$  -$  2,337$               16,224$             (16,224)$           
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$  907,913$                -$  -$  187$                  35,466$             (35,466)$           

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$  100,000$                -$  96,570$             -$  96,570$             -$  
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$  150,000$                -$  117,975$          -$  117,975$          -$  
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$  4,982,838$       -$  4,179,246$       803,592$          
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 188,813$  200,946$                -$  273,792$          -$  106,537$          167,255$          
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$  21,366$                  -$  18,408$             -$  18,408$             0$  
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$  47,003$                  -$  42,435$             -$  42,435$             -$  
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$  34,766$                  -$  30,381$             -$  30,381$             -$  
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 108,628$  108,628$                -$  87,179$             -$  87,179$             (0)$  
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$  23,574$                  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$  7,385,809$       -$  6,527,315$       858,494$          

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$  202,083$                -$  202,083$          -$  202,083$          -$  
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$  966,688$                -$  966,688$          -$  966,688$          (0)$  

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$  25,750$                  -$  25,750$             -$  25,750$             -$  
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 94,616$  94,616$                  -$  19,681$             -$  19,681$             -$  

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             35,135$             9,068,121$       -$  -$  9,068,121$       
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$  4,851,571$       -$  8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$  639,892$          -$  730,989$          (91,097)$           

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             997$                  486,403$          -$  466,382$          20,021$             
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RePrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$  598,574$                -$  598,574$          -$  598,574$          (0)$  
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$  30,000$             -$  30,000$             -$  

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-000State S 1/24/2022 300,000$  304,500$                -$  4,500$               4,500$               302,300$          (297,800)$         
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$  101,500$                -$  1,500$               14,310$             18,560$             (17,060)$           

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Insta Federal F 6/6/2019 3,610,000$               3,717,200$             -$  35,000$             265,513$          (230,513)$         
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$  1,519,536$       1,517,550$       1,986$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$  30,000$             25,000$             5,000$               

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$  -$  376,000$          (376,000)$         
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$  80,000$                  -$  32,691$             -$  32,691$             

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$  632,943$                -$  547,943$          251,072$          296,871$          
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$  5,046,649$       4,980,164$       66,485$             
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$  6,417,323$       3,031$               6,256,862$       160,461$          

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 39,201$  39,201$                  (40)$  45,636$             35,992$             9,644$               
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 15,728$  15,728$                  -$  16,531$             -$  14,294$             2,237$               

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$  50,000$                  -$  50,254$             -$  -$  50,254$             
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 56,351$  56,351$                  50$  62,133$             -$  19,487$             42,646$             

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,372,871$               1,372,871$             282,713$          1,594,144$       117,122$          1,037,023$       557,121$          
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$  1,136,500$       -$  8,537$               1,127,963$       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 2,000$  2,000$  1,600$               3,131$               -$  -$  3,131$               

Total 82,854,021$             82,964,265$           320,455$          47,284,526$     153,821$          38,802,114$     8,482,411$       

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-04 Apr_1 Grants 2023-04 April 5/9/2023 10:08 AM



Prepared Date: 5/3/23 12:31 PM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 5/9/23 9:38 AM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 4/30/2023 3/30/2023 4/30/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 3,966,680.26$      3,667,139.18$      3,074,229.07$      0.00%
PNC - Money Market 5,055,571.12$      8,538,278.51$      7,424,986.51$      2.94%
PNC - Debit Account 1,932.83$           2,000.00$     401.77$     0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 623,446.01$         622,745.38$       15,086,196.58$      1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 257,354.49$         256,357.34$       249,787.09$         n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,068,120.67$      9,032,985.34$      4,408,085.83$      n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,501,776.64$      4,484,333.64$      4,369,391.58$      n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 -$       -$            48,088.82$           n/a
Truist MMA 24,809,220.32$      24,748,938.35$      -$      2.96%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$       414,276.71$         1,650,665.87$      0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,244.32$      2,380,224.76$      0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 1,872,232.98$      1,871,858.61$      1,868,297.53$      0.24%
Totals 52,536,579.64$           56,019,137.82$           38,180,130.65$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
April 30, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2023 4-30-23 5/9/2023 9:39 AM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Manager Timothy Salmon Operational Supplies 3,600$               -$                       
City Manager Timothy Salmon Consultant Fees -$                   (4,300)$                 
City Manager Timothy Salmon Equipment Expense 700$                   -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - City Manager 4,300$               (4,300)$                 

Human Resources Bernadette Dove Salaries & Wages Bonus 165$                   -$                       
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Health Maintenance Program -$                   (165)$                     

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Human Resources 165$                   (165)$                     

GEC Felicia Brown Fees & Dues -$                   (500)$                     
GEC Felicia Brown Building Maintenance 2,000$               -$                       
GEC Felicia Brown Advertising -$                   (700)$                     
GEC Felicia Brown Printing -$                   (800)$                     

Transfers - Apr 2023 - GEC 2,000$               (2,000)$                 

PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 247$                   -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (2,853)$                 
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Fees & Dues -$                   (1,000)$                 
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Miscellaneous Equipment -$                   (3,971)$                 
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 450$                   -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 6,951$               -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Tools 1,000$               -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Riding Lawnmower -$                   (824)$                     

Transfers - Apr 2023 - PW Buildings & Grounds 8,648$               (8,648)$                 

PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Tree Service -$                   (700)$                     
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 700$                   -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - PW Cemetery 700$                   (700)$                     

PW Streets Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 109$                   -$                       
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Travel -$                   (1,500)$                 
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Landfill Charges -$                   (3,403)$                 
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Bonus 313$                   -$                       
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 575$                   -$                       
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 6,588$               -$                       
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Utility Trailer -$                   (4,336)$                 
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Crew Cab Pick-Up Tk W/Utility Body 1,654$               -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - PW Streets 9,239$               (9,239)$                 

Engineering Bobby Croom Medical Exams 51$                     -$                       
Engineering Bobby Croom Operational Supplies -$                   (51)$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Engineering 51$                     (51)$                       

Fire Ron Stempien Operational Supplies -$                   (13)$                       
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Fuel 13$                     -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Fire 13$                     (13)$                       

Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (20,825)$               

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 - Copy Transfer Summary Apr 5/9/2023 9:32 AM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Police Mike West Operational Supplies -$                   (1,000)$                 
Police Mike West Repairs (Insurance Claims) 1,000$               -$                       
Police Mike West Contract Services 20,825$             -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Police 21,825$             (21,825)$               

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Medical Exams 75$                     -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 4,000$               -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Contract Services -$                   (4,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Cleaning Supplies -$                   (3,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Medical Treatment -$                   (75)$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies - Maint. 3,000$               -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Parks & Recreation 7,075$               (7,075)$                 

Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (15,000)$               
Golf Felicia Brown Medical Exams 150$                   -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$                   (4,000)$                 
Golf Felicia Brown Uniforms -$                   (1,200)$                 
Golf Felicia Brown Fuel For Equipment 1,500$               -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Tree Service -$                   (4,500)$                 
Golf Felicia Brown Other Training -$                   (2,000)$                 
Golf Felicia Brown Advertising -$                   (2,000)$                 
Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Part-Time 27,200$             -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Medical Treatment -$                   (150)$                     

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Golf 28,850$             (28,850)$               

Non-Recurring Capital Outlay Catherine Gwynn Econ Devel Incent-WNB Landlord 13,066$             -$                       
Non-Recurring Capital Outlay Catherine Gwynn Econ Devel Incent-Atlantic Casualty -$                   (13,066)$               

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Non-Recurring Capital Outlay 13,066$             (13,066)$               

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 109$                   -$                       
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (579)$                     
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 27$                     -$                       
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Postage-Internal Charges only! 443$                   -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Distribution & Collections 579$                   (579)$                     

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (10,200)$               
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Protective Clothing 200$                   -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Wastewater Analysis 10,000$             -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Water Reclamation 10,200$             (10,200)$               

Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Printing -$                   (20)$                       
Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Multi-Peril Insurance 20$                     -$                       

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Occupancy Tax 20$                     (20)$                       

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Travel -$                   (1,500)$                 
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Street Sweeper -$                   (2,747)$                 
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Landfill Charges -$                   (1,375)$                 
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Bonus 124$                   -$                       

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 - Copy Transfer Summary Apr 5/9/2023 9:32 AM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 602$                   -$                       
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 8,142$               -$                       
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Postage-Internal Charges only! 8$                       -$                       
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Utility Vehicle -$                   (3,254)$                 

Transfers - Apr 2023 - Stormwater 8,876$               (8,876)$                 
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Apr 2023 231,214$           (231,214)$             
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022-Apr 2023 720,755$           (720,755)$             

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 - Copy Transfer Summary Apr 5/9/2023 9:32 AM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
April 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: May 5, 2023 

The cause of fire incidents was determined 79% of the time. 21% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   

The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:18. 

The full response within 8 minutes occurred 95% of all calls.   

There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths. 

The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage. 

 Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Teddy Bear Picnic, WCC Job Fair, Career Day, Church Events, and Truck Displays. We 
reached 218 Adults and 452 Children with fire prevention materials.  

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

1 

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 248 990 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 16 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 98 390 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 30 121 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 42 168 

Other: 85 61 68 81 74 295 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2821 11283 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 3 12 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 134 535 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1 1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
April 2023 
Date Prepared:  May 3, 2023 

Human Resources 
• Attended NCDOL Safety Awards Presentation at Lane Tree
• Coordinated Administrative Professional’s Day Luncheon
• Drafted Worker’s Compensation Coverage Exemption Certification Form
• Conducted Wellness Committee Meeting on 4/6/23
• Attended Special Events Committee meeting
• Finalized results of 2023 Biggest Winner Challenge
• Preparing for LGFCU/Civic Summit to be held for Wayne County and surrounding municipalities.
• Enrolled police officers in Introduction to Law class through Neogov Learn module.
• Scanning and importing employee documentation in Laserfische files and Implementing Electronic

Filing System
• Working with IT To resolve Coda Issues regarding Dual Employment status on PAFs
• Preparing to train HR staff on Laserfiche to move forward with our electronic filing system project.
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation
• Preparing for Summer Grill Break – Presented by Wellness Committee
• Coordinating Hike to the Mountains – Presented by Wellness Committee
• Preparing for ARC Blood Drive in May
• Preparing for Mental Health Awareness Inservice’s
• Concluded Employee Grievance Hearing

Safety 
• April City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections
• April 5 – DGDC Meeting with NCFF Committee
• Working with Adam Twiss concerning Paramount’s construction safety problems.
• Inspected Berkeley Park for bridge damage. Park Maintenance was notified of the concerns.
• Met with Public Work supervisors concerning Confined Space Training with the Fire Department.
• Meeting with private architect and Adam Twiss concerning the decorative pieces falling off the

Paramount.
• Meeting with TA Loving concerning the problems at Paramount Theater
• City Hall safety inspection
• April 11 – Forklift Training at Public Works
• April 12 – New Hire Orientation
• April 13 – Forklift Training at Public Works
• April 18 – Department of Labor Safety Awards for the City of Goldsboro
• April 19 – Forklift Practical
• April 20 – Forklift Practical
• Meeting with Fire Department concerning cross training confined space with Public Works and

Public Utilities.
• April 30 – Investigated another decorative molding fell from Paramount Theater.
• Field Safety for private contractors



2 

• Field Safety with crews 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 177 clinic visits this month.  
 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• Biggest Winner Weight Loss challenge ended April 6th  
• 28 Annual Hearing Screens 
• 10 routine BP checks 
• 6 Drug Screens  
• Certified 70 PD employees in CPR 
• Instructed 88 employees in Bloodborne Pathogen Training 
• 70 employees received TB skin tests 
• New Hire Orientation 16 employees- reviewed FMLA, Workplace Injuries, and BBP 

 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• No employees COVID positive or Quarantined 
• 1 employee started FMLA  
• 2 Workplace Injuries , both were OSHA recordable  
• Assisted 2 employees with finding Primary Care Provider 
• 1 referral to EAP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

DRUG SCREENS = 6 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  0 
New Hire non- CDL:  1 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 3 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  1  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  0 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426         428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94         92 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520         520 
Male  402 402 400 399         401 
Female 118 117 119 121         119 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318         318 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175         175 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16         16 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3         4 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8         8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41         42 
Applications 137 389 354 320         300 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173         131 
New Hires  10 4 8 1         6 
Promotions 0 0 0 0         0 
Resignations 3 8 4 4         5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1         1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0         0 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2%         1.4% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2         3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2         2 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

13 3 3 0         5 

Telework 13 14 14 14         14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 



4 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 
 

2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
April 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: May 4, 2023 
 

• Setup media connections for Planning and Engineering. 
• Restored failed server without data loss. 
• Completed Office 365 Deployments. 
• Installed security cameras at The Hub. 
• Setup Cityworks for Commercial Dumpsters. 
• Upgraded Energov Test Environment. 
• Replaced DGDC Camera. 
• Resolved Traffic Stop Data Reporting Issue. 
• Installed App for CAD at GPD. 
• Resolved Compost Network Outage. 
• Setup Paging for WA Foster. 
• Setup Cameras and Internet at Golf Cart Building. 
• Configured RTA End of Month Reports. 

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692         770 3078 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694         779 3117 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347         360  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 
 



1 

INSPECTIONS 
Apr 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 05/04/23 

The valuation of all permits issued for April totaled $9,171,184.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 

All permit fees collected for the month totaled $38,656.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $5,040 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,855. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,200. 

The Inspectors did a total of 542 inspections for the month.  During the month of April, six (6) business inspections 
were completed.  A total of 414 permits were issued for the month.    Fifty-three (53) plan reviews were completed 
for April. 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $21.1
All Bldgs $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $14.2
Residential $ (K) $1.5M $652 $2.8M $2.6 $1.8M
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $6.9
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $44
Inspections 511 517 626 542 549
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 365
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 47

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



1 

PARAMOUNT 
April 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 5/11/2023 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• April activity included 18 rental/use days, including 13 public performances.

o Notable Activity:

▪ CenterStage Theatre: Seussical

▪ Hellzapoppin Circus

▪ ECU Storybook Theatre

▪ Dance For Christ

▪ Victoria Ruffin-Atkins Concert

▪ UWWC – Governor’s Volunteer event

▪ Senior Follies

▪ Multiple Dance Recitals

• April cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 6 days, 3 public performances

• Repairs and Maintenance:

▪ Façade Ornamental Elements removed and being reattached by TA Loving

▪ HVAC Controls upgrade planed with Piedmont

▪ Wheelchair lift – finalizing plan to replace in this fiscal year.

▪ Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund

▪ Roof leaks repaired by Wayne Roofing

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 

Expenses: $75,399:   Labor: $29,002 / Operations: $9367 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $37,040 

Revenues: $47,572:   Tickets: -$20,210 / Rentals: -$25,240 / Concession: $2,122 

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total A verage

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $638,451 $63,845

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $393,330 $39,333

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total A verage

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
April 2023 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 5/8/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted an Olympic Development Program (ODP) on               

April 2nd – 250 participants 
 

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 145 participants 
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted seventeen (17) events during April – 2,965 guests and seven (7) 

City of Goldsboro events – 260 guests 
 

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 52 patrons due to dates already being booked 
 

• The roof over the Front Entrance/Lobby of the GEC has been repaired 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the Men’s and Women’s Golf Tournaments for Wayne County Senior Games 
– combined 39 players  
 

• Balance Vending is up and running.  They held the Grand Opening for their café at the Goldsboro Golf 
Course during the Masters Tournament Weekend   
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center for April – 146 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 486 visitors for the month of 
April 

 
• P&R Staff hosted Wayne County Senior Games throughout the month of April – 152 participants   

 
• Games for Youth Spring Sports of Soccer, T-Ball, Baseball and Softball started this month 

 
• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during April – 914 participants  

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 

 
• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 

with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 
  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705                 $19,897 
Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225                 2063 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475                 $7,219 
                            
WA Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170                 $2,301 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088                 $1,695 
Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651                 2235 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993                 $10,915 
                            
T.C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280                 $612 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450                 $878 
Facility Usage 197 73 170 193                 158 
Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934                 $2,348 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0                 $0 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0                 $0 
Facility Usage 190 182 98 $98                 142 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729                 $7,286 
                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140                 $81 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0                 $0 
Facility Usage 166 251 295 210                 231 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818                 $4,436 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142                 $14,094 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0                 $1,555 
Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350                 20388 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886                 $8,955 
                            
Golf Course                         
Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454                 $43,736 
Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482                 $47,060 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941                 1880 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972                 -$3,324 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0                 $500 
Participation 0 200 70 152                 106 
Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94                 $384 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429                 $85,348 

TOTAL EXPENSES $95,051 $80,793 $96,571 $80,411                 $88,207 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $341,392          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $352,826           

 



 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are 
included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 



1 

PLANNING 
April 2023 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  May 8, 2023 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

2023 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 4 0 1 3
Subdivison 3 2 1 3

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 2 1 2

Special Use 1 3 1 0
Annexation 1 0 0 0

Home Occupation 1 0 0 0
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 0 3 2 2
Staff Review 0 0 2 2

UDO Violations
Notice of Violations 4

Violations with Payments 1

Notice of Violations 
(Require Lot Cut) 0 0 0 0

Notice of Violations
(Total NOV's Issued) 119

Grass Cutting 
Payments to Contractor $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Unsightly Lot
Payments to Contractor $490.00

Tagged Vehicles 0 1 0 3

Illegal Signs Removed
56 102 222 156

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 303 189 271

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



2022 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 3 0 27 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 1 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 3 1 28 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 0 21 2
Annexation - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 0

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 1 2 13 1

Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 13 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 28 4 362 45

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $1,435 784.00$  $16,138 $2,017

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 3 12 177 15

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 29 36 1218 102

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 114 208 3122 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
April 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West         
Date Prepared:  May 4, 2023  

Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for April 2023 were 165, compared to 187 for April 2022. 

Property with an estimated value of $240,272 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $18,814 was recovered and property damaged was $26,405. 

Officers arrested 95 people and issued 254 citations during the month. There were 10 drug-related 
charges.  

There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s). 

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 3 
Rape 0    2  1  2 5 
Robbery 2 1  4  1 8 
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 74 
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 68 
Larceny 112 88   110  114 424 
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 48 
Arson 0 0 0  0 0 
TOTALS 161 134 170  165 630 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7 
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19 
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41 
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227 
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236 
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120 
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 
TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966 

Revenue collected for April 2023 included: 

Police Reports $    92.00 
Fingerprints $      70.00 
Special Events $   25.00 

         Total $   187.00 



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
April 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: May 8, 2023 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and 

at the NRPS. 
o One vacant position. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily 

flow for April is 9.94-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.73-MGD. This puts the WRF at 
61% capacity. 

o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on implementation several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New 

Hope L/S, Generator at Westbrook L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand 
filter #2 and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System Replace Transfer Switches at 
the Neuse Rive Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage Tank at the WRF, Construct 
Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow meters at the WTP.  

o  4 uncertified operators and 1 Lab Tech will be sitting for exams on June 8 for their 
certifications. 

o 2 vacant positions. Currently in the process of hiring a apprentice through the NRWA for 
one of the vacant positions. This will be the second apprentice since 2020. 

Compost Facility 
• One Thousand five hundred and nine cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in April 2023. 
• One vacant position. 

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.346         5.82 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94         8.73 
Compost 163 358 835 1509         716 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 12.4

1.6 5.2 3 3.3 3.3

30 22 23 24 24.8

12 12 18 16 14.5

12 3 5 3 5.8

3 5 8 5 5.3

49 61 63 33 51.5

0 0 0 61 15.3

0 15 69 75 39.8

249 207 265 245 241.5

79$       74$       76$       75$       75.9

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.018

0 38 0 37 18.8

0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.704

5 4 5 5 4.8

9 8 23 17 14.3

70 65 105 145 96.3

49.7 102 170.8 130.2 113.2

4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 2.7

0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 0.7

1 3 1 7 3.0

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5

32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2

0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Public Works Department

April 2023
Prepared by:  Rick Fletcher

Date Prepared: 3 May 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Repaired City Hall fountain; Continue to assist with facade issues at paramount. 

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 14 after hour calls--total of 28 hours. Completed 71 work orders.  

Streets & Stormwater: Poured a combined 17 Sq Yds of concrete on two large jobs--Garge Lifts & 207 Workman St; Repaired 3 
stormwater catch basins and raised 4 stormwater manholes; Jet rodded and cleaned 2,254 LF of stormwater pipe;  Removed two 
Beaver Damns @ Westbrook Spray Fields and 1109 Summit Rd;  Layed 176 LF of 15" HDPE Stormdrain pipe @129 Woods Mill Rd.



1 

Travel and Tourism 
April 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring 
Date Prepared: 5/04/23 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of April by the TTO—441 e-inquiries.

● Total hotel revenue generated in March was $2,341,088 which is up 10.8% YOY. April revenue not yet

released.

● Website sessions increased 47% compared to February. Session increased nearly 7% compared to the

previous month. The top landing page behind the home page was “50 things to do in Wayne County”

with 186 sessions.

● Candace continues to help facilitate updates to the Wings Over Wayne website, promote the air show, and

answer questions through social media platforms.

● Presented to Jr. Leadership group

● Amanda attended WOW Air Show Meeting – 4/10

● Amanda and Candace attended WOW Air Show Meeting 4/17

● Hosted Hotelier’s Meeting – 4/13

● Amanda attended Eggs & Issues

● Candace organized and assisted with agricultural photo shoot – 4/25

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $768,988 $85,443 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 



Item I



Item J



Item K



Item L


	Agenda 05-15-23
	ws item c - Wayne County NC Proposal for Detoxification.Inpatient,Treatment Center 11.04.22
	Wayne County NC�Proposal for Detoxification/Inpatient Center
	Slide Number 2
	Dr. Ramesh L. Krishnaraj, MD MPH	
	Services Provided
	ICGH QUALITY OF CARE
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Detoxification and Inpatient Center	
	Request

	Item A - Minutes 5-1-23
	Item C - DGAF 2023
	Item D -GWTA Appreciation Proclamation
	Item E - AAP
	Item F - ch 98 memo
	Item F - Code Update CH 98 - May 2023
	Item G - ch 117 memo
	Item G - Code Update Chapter 117
	Item H - Monthly Reports
	Item H - Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations Monthly Report - April 2023
	Community Relations Monthly Report Addendum - April 2023
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - APRIL 2023
	Finance 2023-04
	Finance.2 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-04 Apr_1
	Grants 2023-04 April

	Finance.3 - Cash & Investment FY2023-10-Apr
	4-30-23

	Finance.4 - Budget Transfers Summary FY23_5 2023-10 APR
	Transfer Summary Apr

	Fire - Monthly Report
	HR MonthlyRpt_April
	Info Tech -  Monthly Report April 2023
	Inspections
	P&R_Golf_GEC
	Planning - April Report 2023
	Police Monthly Report April 2023
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report - Copy
	PW Council Report- 2023 04
	TT April 2023 Directors Report

	Item I - Tourette Syndrome Awareness Month 2023
	Item J - Peace Officers 2023
	Item K - Armed Forces Day 2023
	Item L - Building Safety Month 2023



